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LIST OF RECOMMENDATIONS

Recommendation: The Committee affirms the importance of the principle
that there should be a clear separation between the functions ot
investigative agencies, such as the Authority, and those agencles
responsible for determining whether a prosecution shouid proceed, such
as the Federal and State Directors of Public Prosecutions. However the
Committee does not believe that this principle would be eroded if, where
the Authority and the prosecuting agency cannot agree on the selection of
counsel to conduct the prosecution in a case arising out of an Investigation
undertaken by the Authority, the Authority were to be in a position to assist
the relevant agency with the costs of briefing counsel upon whom both the
Authority and the relevant agency could agree. The Committee notes that
this proposal, although permitting the choice of counsel to conduct the
prosecution to be reached by agreement between the Authority and the
relevant prosecuting agency, would stili leave the decislon whether to
prosecute, and if so on what charges, as the sole responsibility of the
relevant prosecuting agency. The Committee accordingly recommends that
the Authority should be provided with sufficient funds to enable it to assist
prosecuting agencies in meeting the costs of briefing counsel upon whom
both the Authority and the relevant prosecuting agency can agree to
conduct prosecutions in cases arising out of the Authorlty's Investigations
when agreement cannot be reached with the relevant prosecuting agency
on any other basis. (Paragraph 2.13).

Recommendation: The Committee recommends that the costs of the
present system for telecommunications Interception be carefully monitored
so that consideration may be glven In future to the adoption of measures
which may reduce the costs of such interceptions to all law enforcement
agencles. (Paragraph 3.14).
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CHAPTER 1

INTRODUCTION

1.1 The Parliamentary Joint Committee on the National Crime Authority is
constituted pursuant to section 53 of the National Crime Authority Act 1984. The
Committee has the duty under section 55 of that Act to monitor and to review
the performance by the National Crime Authority of its functions and to report 10
both Houses of the Parliament upon any matter appertaining 1o the Authority or
connected with the performance of its functions 1o which, in the opinion of the
Committee, the attention of the Parliament should be directed.

1.2 The Committee fulfils its monitoring and reviewing function by keeping a
watch on what the Authority is doing and examining suggestions that the
Authority has not been performing its statutory functions or that it has abused its
powers. Most such suggestions have been made in the press rather than being
raised directly with the Committee but the Committee has also relied upon
informal channels of communication available 1o parliamentarians and its formal
power to seek submissions from other bodies which may have had dealings with
the Authority.

1.3 The Committee tries to meet regularly with the Authority and although its
plans were disrupted this year by airline disputes it has met with the Authority on
ten occasions over the past three years. At such meetings the Authority briefs
the Committee on matters such as staff and resources, legislative and other
constraints impacting upon the Authority's ability to perform its functions
effectively, the Authority’s relations with other agencies, its strategic planning and
procedures, completed investigations and operations which have entered the
public domain. The Committee is not, however, briefed on matiers which the
Authority considers to be operationally sensitive.

1.4  The Committee’s regular meetings with the Authority also provide a forum
for the Committee to raise with the Authority matters of concern in relation to the
Authority’s performance of its functions. Thus the Committee has sought
explanations in relation to prosecutions arising out of the Autherity’s
investigations which have failed at the committal stage of proceedings,
aliegations of interference in the Authority’s operations by politicians or officers
of other law enforcement agencies and suggestions of inadequacies in the
Authority’s arrangements for the protection of witnesses. In addition to the oral
priefing provided at its regular meetings with the Authority, the Committee also
receives written briefing material from the Authority including detailed briefs on
each of the Authority’s investigations. The Committee has also sought and
received from the Authority specific documents to supplement material provided
by way of oral briefing and explanation.



15 The Committee has presented two previous reports to the Parliament
pursuant to its monitoring and reviewing function, the First Report in November
1985 and the Second Report in November 1986. In May 1988 the Committee
tabled a report entitlted The National Crime Authority — An Initiai Evaluation in
which it supported the passage of legislation repealing the ‘sunset clause’ in the
National Crime Authority Act 1984 which would otherwise have resulted in the
Authority ceasing to exist on 30 June 1989. However the Committee considered
that it was only possible to make an initial evaluation of the Authority’s
performance at that time since many of the Authority’s investigations were not
completed and legal proceedings were before the courts or pending in a number
of matters arising out of the Authority’s investigations.

1.6 The Committee therefore recommended that a more comprehensive
evaluation of the Authority’s work, and of the success of the law enforcement
strategy underpinning the establishment of the Authority, be undertaken after the
Authority had been in existence for seven years. That recommendation did not
mean, however, that the Committee did not intend to continue to fulfil its duty of
monitoring and reviewing the performance by the Authority of its functions in the
meanwhile and it is pursuant to that duty that the Committee presents this, its
Third Report, to the Parliament. Its purpose is to report on matters connected
with the Authority’s performance of its functions during the period since the
Committee presented its Second Report and, in particular, to report on the
Commitiee's examination of some of the Authority’s investigations which may
have given rise to public concern that the Authority was not performing its
functions properly.

1.7 The Committee has not attempted to provide an exhaustive account of
the Authority’s activities in the course of the past three years nor has it set out to
make some further evaluation of the Authority’s performance beyond that
contained in its Initial Evaluation. The detail of the Authority’s work may be found
in its own Annual Reporis which provide a very comprehensive picture of the
way in which it has been carrying out its functions including details of specific
investigations where these have been dealt with by the courts. The Committee
would also refer interested readers to the Committee’s Initial Evaluation for
material relating 10 the Authority’s organisation and its interpretation of its
functions. The Committee restricts itself in this report to specific matters which
have been discussed with the Authority in the course of the regular meetings
referred to above.

1.8 However it is appropriate to remark that the period covered by this report
saw the end of Mr Justice Stewart's term as the Chairman of the Authority. As
the foundation Chairman of the Authority Mr Justice Stewart deserves much of
the credit tor establishing as a working reality what was a unique and novel
concept in law enforcement. In making this comment the Commitiee does not
intend to discount the very significant contribution made by the other members of
the Authority over the past five years nor the dedication and hard work of the
many members of staff who have helped over that time to build the reputation of
the Authority as an effective element of this country’s faw enforcement
machinery. However nobody can deny that the Authority in its first five years
bore the stamp of Mr Justice Stewart's personality nor that in significant respects
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it reflected his experience as a Royal Commissioner inquiring into the ‘Mr Asia’
drug syndicate, the Nugan Hand bank and the illegal interception of telephone
calls by the New South Wales Police.

1.9 The task that Mr Justice Stewart was set as the foundation Chairman of
the Authority was a difficult one. Not only was he required to build a new agency
the very existence of which was fiercely resented by many within the existing law
enforcement structure of the country but the legislation also contained a ‘sunset
clause’ which would have resutted in the Authority ceasing to exist after a period
of five years unless the Parliament passed a further law to the contrary. The
Authority was thus under pressure to prove itself and to do so quickly even
though the investigation of organised crime is a lengthy process and it takes
even longer for the results of investigations to be processed by our criminal
justice system. The perception that it had to ‘put runs on the board’ to justify its
existence led to the Authority being criticised in some quarters as ‘arrest-driven’,
although Mr Justice Stewart himself had rejected the number of arrests the
Authority had made as a satisfactory measurement of its overall performance in
the Authority’s Annual Report 1985-86. However, as the Committee commented
in its Initial Evaluation, there was an expectation on the part of the Parliament in
establishing the Authority that it would get results: that it would put important or
significant criminals behind bars. This the Authority under Mr Justice Stewart did.

110 The attention which a handful of cases attracted because charges against
high profile defendants were withdrawn or dismissed should not be allowed to
obscure the fact that any failures in cases arising out of the Authority’s
investigations have been far outweighed by its successes. A summary of the
Authority’s major successes and failures to date is set out in Appendix 1.

1.11  The importance of these successes does not lie in mere numbers but in
the significance of the criminals convicted and in the impact which the Authority’s
activities have had on organised crime in general. Thus, for example, after many
years of notoriety and speculation in refation to his alleged involvement in
organised crime, Mr Abraham Saffron was convicted in October 1987 of
conspiracy to defraud the Commonweatih of income tax and sentenced to three
years imprisonment, the maximum sentence available tor the offence. Mr Saffron
was refused special leave to appeal to the High Court against his sentence in
August this year. In addition, as a result of the Authority’'s investigations, the
Australian Taxation Office issued additional assessments against Mr Saffron and
one of his companies for $2,955,000.

112 The Authority’s investigation under Commonwealth Reference No. 2,
codenamed Operation lliad, concerns the illegal importation and distribution of
drugs, especially heroin, by persons of Chinese origin and their associates, and
the financing of the imponation and distribution of such drugs. The Australian
Federal Police had initiated a similar investigation but had met with little success.
At the time that the investigation was taken over by the Authority (at the request
of the Australian Federal Police} some targets had been identified but no
substantive police investigation of them had been undertaken. The Authority’s
investigation has so far resuited in the charging of 93 people on a total of 198
charges. Sixty-seven prosecutions have been completed, resulting in 39
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convictions and 15 deportations. The significance of this investigation is borne
out by the amount of heroin seized (almost 60 kilograms) and by the severity of
the sentences imposed as set out in Appendix 1.

113 Mr Justice Findiay of the New South Wales Supreme Court, in passing
sentence on Tieng Souksamrane and Samlane Phanith on 22 April 1988 for their
parts in the importation of 2.16 kilograms of heroin from Thailand via Singapors,
felt it appropriate to commend those responsible for the investigation:

‘This involved principally police officers attached to the
National Crime Authority but also in conjunction with customs
officers and with narcotic officers of the Central Narcotics
Bureau Singapore. It was only through their compstence and
their sustained thoroughness that eventually the arrests were
made and none of the drugs escaped into the community in
Australia,”

1.14  Operation Silo (Commonwealth Reference No. 3) is perhaps the most
publicised Authority success. This investigation focused on the Cornwell/Bull
drug syndicate. Although Bruce Cornwell and his associates had previously been
the subjects of police attention, there had been no success in obtaining hard
evidence against them. The Authority did obtain such evidence and Cornwell,
Bull and eight of their associates were convicted with substantial sentences
being imposed.

1.15 The Authority was also successful in its re-investigation, under
Commonwealth Reference No. 6, of a number of gangland murders in Sydney,
after the investigation of these murders by a special New South Wales police
task force had had litle success. As a result of the Authority’s investigation,
Thomas Domican was found guilty of shooting at Christopher Dale Flannery and
his family with the intent to murder them and was sentenced to fourteen years
imprisonment. Domican has appealed against his conviction and sentence.
Inteligence gained during this investigation also materially assisted the New
South Wales Police Operation Kappa which has resulted in the charging of a
number of men in relation to two of the other murders,

1.16  In South Australia an investigation by the Authority led to the successful
prosecution of former Chief Inspector Barry Moyse on drug-related charges. The
prosecutor, Mr Michael David, QC, acknowledged the work of the Authority in the
course of the sentencing hearing, telling the court that the people of South
Australia owed a debt of gratitude to the Authority for uncovering Moyse’s drug
operations:

‘if it wasn't for the investigations of the much maligned NCA,
these offences might never have been detected.”

'R v Samiane Phanith and Tieng Souksamrane (unreported, New South Wales
Supreme Court, 22 April 1988), p.6.
*Quoted in The Age, 13 August 1988, p.186.
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117 The measure of the Authority’s success lies not only in the number of
convictions of significant criminals arising from its investigations but also in the
fact that it is unlikely that many of these convictions would have occurred without
the Authority. Other agencies had already attempted investigations in some of
the cases and had been unable to launch prosecutions, while in the Moyse case
it was acknowledged that the offences might not have been uncovered but for
the intervention of the Authority. Moreover in some areas it appears that the
Authority has not only broken new ground but that it has stimulated other law
enforcement agencies to follow it. The Committee understands that the Authority
was the first law enforcement agency in Australia to employ Chinese-speaking
officers from Hongkong to assist in the investigation of criminal activity among
Chinese elements in Austratia. Now the Australian Federal Police are also
experiencing seme success in this area in co-operation with the authorities in
Hongkong.

118 Mr Justice Stewart's experience as a Royal Commissioner was also
reflected in the ‘hands on’ management style he adopted as the Chairman of the
Authority. Rather than standing back as a manager he was involved in the day to
day running of the Authority’s investigations. With the lifting of the ‘sunset
clause’, however, there was a need for the organisational structure of the
Authority and the role of the Chairman in particular to change to reflect the
Authority’'s new status as a permanent body. Mr Justice Stewart had initiated a
review of the Authority’s organisational structure, management practices and
support systems in November 1988 and the final report of this review was
presented in July 1989 to the new Chairman, Mr Peter Faris, QC. While the
Committee considers that the complete change in the membership of the
Authority — apart from the member in charge of the Adelaide office, Mr Le Grand
— which took place in July 1989 was undesirable from the point of view of
continuity in the Authority’s investigations, it has undoubtedly given Mr Faris the
opportunity to place his stamp on the Authority in turn. Mr Faris has already
indicated to the Committee that he proposes to take the Authority in new
directions and that, unlike Mr Justice Stewart, he will not be involved in the day
to day running of investigations. Instead he intends to take on an overall
management role, with responsibility for the Authority’s policies and procedures.
The Committee welcomes this initiative and looks forward to a continuation of the
Authority’s record of success under its new Chairman.



CHAPTER 2

THE AUTHORITY'S PERFORMANCE

Introduction

2.1 The Authority has been the subject of much criticism in the past two
years. The Committee does not wish to cast itself in the role of the public
defender of the Authority, but on the other hand it believes it has a duty to speak
out when the Authority is wrongly attacked by those who seek to misrepresent
the Authority’s functions or by those who are not in full possession of the facts.
The Committee, because of its intimate knowledge of the Authority’s activities, is
well placed to reassure both the Parliament and the people of Australia when it
is wrongly suggested that the Authority is departing from its proper functions or
is not carrying out those functions as well as it should. Conversely, when
criticism is warranted, the Committee is well placed not only to identify where
faults in the Authority’s performance may lie, but also to suggest ways in which
those faults might be remedied.

The Authority and its critics

22  Some may object that the Authority could very well answer such criticism
itself. The Committee, however, has the advantage of independence from the
Authority whereas any defence coming from the Authority itself could be
criticised as self-serving. Moreover the Authority is constrained by the secrecy
requirements of its Act in a way in which the Committee is not. In this connection
the Commitiee notes that the Authority has been the subject of much misplaced
criticism because of the secrecy surrounding its operations. Unfavourable
comparisons have been drawn, for example, with the Commission of Inquiry into
Possible Ilega! Activities and Associated Police Misconduct undertaken by Mr
G.E. Fitzgerald, QC, in Queensland. The tact of the maiter is that the Parliament
in establishing the Authority made a deliberate decision that its hearings should
be conducted in secret so as to protect the reputations of innocent persons who
might be subjected to all sorts of unsubstantiated allegations. it is unfair to
criticise the Authority for carrying out its operations in accordance with its
establishing Act.

2.3 Similarly, Mr D. Meagher, QC, has criticised the Authority for not
‘oroducing reports on the operations of organised crime in Australia, with lengthy
examination of the way in which it operates, and various strategies that could be
undertaken to suppress it'.} This criticism mirrors that made by Mr F.X. Costigan,
QC, when he appeared before the Committee in April last year, as set out in the

1ABC Television, The World Tonight, 9 June 1988.
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Committee’s Initial Evaluation report? In making this criticism Messrs Costigan
and Meagher adopt the views they expressed to the Senate Standing Commiittee
on Constitutional and Legal Affairs in the course of its inquiry into the National
Crime Authority Bilt 1983, namely that the Authority should be primarily an
intelligence-gathering rather than an investigative body.* However both the
Committee and the Parliament rejected their views and the Authority's principal
tunction under the National Crime Authority Act 1984 is the assembling of
admissible evidence for the prosecution of offenders. Mr Meagher is of course
entitled to his views as to what the functions of the Authority ought to be, but
there is no point in criticising the Authority for failing to perform those functions
rather than the functions it is required to perform under its Act. In directing its
attentions to the investigation of specific offences rather than compiling lengthy
reports on organised crime the Authority is simply carrying out its functions as
the Parliament intended.

2.4 Much of the criticism of the Authority over the last few years has come
from police associations and the Committee believes that factors such as
‘professional jealousy’, competition for resources and wariness about security
issues may have been motivators of this criticism. However the Committee
recognises that such failures have not been all on one side. The evidence
available to the Committee suggests that relations between the Autharity and
police forces have significantly improved in recent months and the Committee
looks forward to closer co-operation as the separate role of the Authority
becomes better defined.

Specific cases

2.5  The Authority has been criticised often in the course of the past year as a
resuit of investigations which have failed at the commitiai stage of proceedings.
These were:

(1} the prosecution of South Australian Assistant Commissioner Kevin
Harvey, Detective Sergeant Eric Douglas and Ms Patricia Walkuski
on charges of conspiracy 1o pervert the course of justice, the
charges being dismissed by Mr Clynton Johansen SM on 11 March
1988;

(2) the prosecution of Mr Al Grassby, Mr Giuseppe Sergi and Mrs
Jennifer Sergi on charges of conspiracy to pervert the course of
justice and criminal defamation, all charges except that of criminal
defamation against Mr Grassby being dismissed by Mr J.S. Williams

“Parliamentary Joint Committee on the National Crime Authority, The National
Crime Authority — An initial Evaluation (Parliamentary Paper No. 378/1988,
A.G.P.S., Canberra, 1988), pp.64-65.

*Senate Standing Committee on Constitutional and Legal Affairs, The National
Crime Authority Bill 1983 (Parliamentary Paper No. 3011984, A.G.P.S., Canberra,
1984}, pp.12-16.



on 13 May 1988 and a stay granted by the same magistrate in
respect of the charge of criminal defamation against Mr Grassby on
26 May 1988;

(3) the prosecution of Sir Andrew Grimwade and Messrs Trevor Huttley,
Jon Wilson, John Collier and Kelvin Dyer on charges of inducing
investors 1o invest in the Jet Corporation of Australia Unit Trust by
the making of false statements, the charges against Sir Andrew
Grimwade and Messrs Collier and Dyer being dismissed by Mr R.
Franich on 3 June 1988 while Huttiey and Wilson were committed
for trial;

(4) the prosecution of New South Wales Police Chief Superintendent
Jim Wiilis, South Australian Assistant Commissioner Kevin Harvey,
Mr Les Knox, Mr Howard Hilton and Mr Morres George on charges
of conspiracy to pervert the course of justice, the charges being
withdrawn by the New South Wales Director of Public Prosecutions
on 23 June 1988; and

(5) the prosecution of Mr Abraham Saffron and former New South
Wales Deputy Police Commissioner Bill Allen on charges of
conspiracy to bribe Sergeant Warren Molioy of the New South
Wales Police Licensing Sguad and conspiracy to obstruct the
course of justice, the charges being dismissed by Mr S.D.K. Hyde
on 15 July 1988 while the question of a stay of bribery charges
against Mr Allen was adjourned pending appeals.

2.6 The Committee had intended to deal with all five of these cases at some
length in this report and also to address certain specific criticisms of the
Authority made by the magistrate, Mr Williams, in handing down his initial
decision in relation to the charges against Mr Grassby and Mr and Mrs Sergi on
13 May 1988. However three of the cases remain before the courts. First, the
New South Wales Director of Public Prosecutions successfully appealed to the
New South Wales Court of Criminal Appeal against the decision of the magistrate
to grant a stay of the criminal defamation charge against Mr Grassby and this
ruling was upheld by the High Court in a decision handed down on 12 October
1989. The High Court, however, left open the possibifity that Mr Grassby might
make further application for a stay of the proceedings against him te the trial
court once he had been committed for trial.

2.7 Secondly, the Victorian Director of Public Prosecutions has presented Sir
Andrew Grimwade, Mr Collier and Mr Dyer for trial on the same charges of
making fraudulent inducements which were earlier dismissed by the magistrate
and this trial is now under way in Melbourne. Thirdly, although the decision of the
magistrate to dismiss the conspiracy charges against Messrs Saffron and Allen
was upheld by the New South Wales Court of Appeal in a decision handed down
on 7 June 1989, Mr Allen has since been committed for trial on the remaining
bribery charges. The Committee has therefore considered it inappropriate for it
to make any comment on these three matters and it has confined itself to the
other two cases listed above.



28  Two things should be made clear at the outset, however. First, the
Authority has no responsibility for the conduct of prosecutions. It does not bring
prosecutions in its own name and has no statutory power to do s0.* The decision
whether to prosecute, and if so on what charges, rests with the responsible
prosecuting agency. In respect of Federal offences this is the Commonwealth
Director of Public Prosecutions while New South Wales and Victoria both now
have similar officers with statutorily independent prosecuting functions. it has
been suggested that the Authority, headed as it was until recently by a judge
and two senior members of the criminal bar, may have had undue influence on
the exercise by the Directors of Public Prosecutions of their independent
discretions to prosecute. However this would mean that those officers were not
carrying out their statutory duty.® No doubt the views of the Authority carry great
weight, and in each of the five cases listed above the Authority's view that a
prima facie case existed was backed by the advice of counsel assisting drawn
from the private bar. Nonetheless the final decision whether to prosecute
remains one taken by the relevant prosecuting authority.

2.9 This independence is illustrated by the decision of the New South Wales
Director of Public Prosecutions to withdraw the charges against Chief
Superintendent Willis and others and also by the course of events in the
Grimwade case. The Authority had obtained independent advice on the charges
which should be laid in this case and on 9 June 1987 charges of conspiracy to
defraud and giving and receiving secret commissions were laid against
Grimwade, Huttley, Collier and Witson. On 11 September 1987, three months
after the brief had been forwarded to him and three days before the committal
hearing was due to begin, the Victorian Director of Public Prosecutions informed
the Authority that he had concluded that the charges that had been laid were not
appropriate. On 9 and 10 November 1987 charges of making fraudulent
inducements to investors were substituted. Clearly the lack of consultation which
took place in this case was undesirable but the Committee was informed at its
meeting with the Authority on 9 December 1987 that the necessary fences had
been mended.®

210  Not only does the Authority not have any role in the conduct of
prosecutions, it does not seek such a role. It recognises the importance of the
principle that there should be a clear separation between investigative agencies
such as the Authority and those agencies responsible for determining whether a

‘A police officer attached to the Authority may be named as the informant in
relation to charges arising out of an investigation conducted by the Authority but
this does not mean that the Authority has the carriage of the prosecution. Indeed
in some States committal proceedings are usually handled by police prosecutors
and this has caused the Authority some difficulties since it must prevail upon the
prosecuting agencies to carry out this task, lacking as it does any power to
conduct prosecutions itself.

*See the editorial in the Sydney Morning Herald of 30 June 1988 and the
subsequent letter from the Commonwealth Director of Public Prosecutions, Mr
lan Temby, QC, published on 5 July.

*In Camera Evidence, Meeting with Authority, 9 December 1987, p.558.
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prosecution should proceed.” The separation of these functions is an important
shield against wrongful prosecutions. An investigator may become
psychologically commitied to a prosecution and may therefore find it difficult to
take a detached view of the strength of the case. The investigator may also be
influenced in his or her belief in the guilt of the accused by evidence which is
inadmissible in court and may be inclined to overlook evidence which is
tavourable to the accused. Quite apart from the question of the strength of the
prosecution’s case the investigator is also not well placed to weigh the public
interest factors which enter into the decision to prosecute. Although the decision
to prosecute is only the first of the screens a case passes through before a
person's guilt or innocence of a crime is determined it is potentially the most
significant because thereafter all events take place in open court and often in a
glare of publicity. Even if the accused person is not committed for trial by the
magistrate or is found not guilty by the jury there will still be those who will say
that there is no smoke without fire. Accordingly it is of the utmost importance
that the decision to prosecute be taken by someone who has not been involved
in the investigation, who has no preconceptions as to the guilt or innocence of
the accused and who can make an impartial evaluation of the strengths and
weaknesses of the evidence against the accused.

2,11 However the fact that the prosecution of cases arising out of the
Authority's investigations is left entirely in the hands of the prosecuting agencies
has been a matter of concern to the Committee. The Authority may be left to
some extent a ‘hostage to fortune’ so far as the ultimate outcome of the cases
arising out of its investigations is concerned. The Authority has generally been
content with the manner in which such cases have been conducted and the
Committee is satisfied that in no instance has a prosecution arising out of one of
the Authority's investigations failed solely because of any inadequacy on the part
of the prosecutor. Nevertheless the Authority has expressed to the Committee its
grave concern about the competence of the prosecutor involved in one case.
The Committee was told that the Authority had approached the relevant Director
of Public Prosecutions but that he had declined to replace the prosecutor in
question or to give him a leader (that is, a mare senior barrister who would have
primary carriage of the case).

2.12 The Committee considers that it is unsatisfactory that the Authority should
not be able to have confidence in the competence of the prosecutors handling
its cases. Given the amount of money invested in the Authority’s investigations it
would be a false economy if a case arising out of any such investigation were 1o
fail because the prosecutor involved was not up to the task in hand. The
Committee has been told that if the Authority were to be in a position 10 provide
funds the prosecuting agencies would be happy to brief anyone upon whom the
Authority and the relevant agency could agree.? If the Authority had in essence a
right of veto over counsel it would be as well placed as it could expect to be if it
prosecuted its own cases. At the same time the important distinction between

’In Camera Evidence, Meeting with Authority, 9 December 1987, p.546; Meeting
with Authority, 3 June 1888, p.617.
%in Camera Evidence, Meeting with Authority, 3 June 1988, p.618.
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the investigating and prosecuting functions would remain, with the decision
whether to prosecute, and if so on what charges, remaining vested in an
independent agency.

2,13 Recommendation: The Committee affirms the importance of the
principle that there should be a ciear separation between the functions of
investigative agencies, such as the Authority, and those agencies
responsible for determining whether a prosecution should proceed, such
as the Federal and State Directors of Public Prosecutions. However the
Committee does not believe that this principle would be eroded if, where
the Authority and the prosecuting agency cannot agree on the selection of
counsel to conduct the prosecution in a case arising out of an investigation
undertaken by the Authority, the Authority were to be in a position to assist
the relevant agency with the costs of briefing counsel upon whom both the
Authority and the relevant agency could agree. The Committee notes that
this proposal, although permitting the choice of counsel to conduct the
prosecution to be reached by agreement between the Authority and the
relevant prosecuting agency, would still leave the decision whether to
prosecute, and if so on what charges, as the sole responsibility of the
relevant prosecuting agency. The Committee accordingly recommends that
the Authority should be provided with sufficient funds to enable it to assist
prosecuting agencies in meeting the costs of briefing counsel upon whom
both the Authority and the relevant prosecuting agency can agree to
conduct prosecutions in cases arising out of the Authority’s Investigations
when agreement cannot be reached with the relevant prosecuting agency
on any other basis.

2.14  Secondly, the intention of the Committee in reviewing these cases is not
to reconsider the findings of the Authority in relation to its investigations. The
Committee is in any case prevented from undertaking this task by sub-section
55(2) of the National Crime Authority Act 71984. Rather, the Commitiee’s intention
is to examine the Authority’s performance in relation to these cases and to
determine whether the Authority, in conducting its investigations and in
assembling the requisite admissible evidence, met its statutory responsibilities.

215 It is always easy to be critical with the benefit of hindsight and the
Committee inevitably finds itself in the position of examining the Authority’s
actions after the event. It is one thing for the Committee to identify, let us say,
some step which any prudent person would have taken in the investigation of a
particular offence but which the Authority omitted, and quite another for the
Committee to suggest that in retrospect (and knowing the view the courts took of
the case put together by the Authority) the Authority should have sought
additional evidence before proceeding or should not have proceeded at all.
Moreover one may readily imagine situations where the Authority’s failure to act,
for example, on allegations of corruption against certain police officers might be
the subject of criticism by armchair critics taking the view that the evidence in
the case was stronger than it appeared to the Authority. The Committee cannot
second guess the Authority. lts review of those cases arising out of the
Authority’s investigations which falled at the committal stage of proceedings is
therefore limited to an attempt to identify any flaws in the Authority’s procedures
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which may have led to cases being assembled which were not soundly based
and which can be remedied in the future. It is on this basis, therefore, that the
Committee approaches its review of the first and fourth of the cases listed
above.

Harvey, Douglas and Walkuski

216 The South Australian Assistant Commissioner (Crime}, Mr Kevin Harvey,
Detective Sergeant Eric Douglas and Ms Patricia Walkuski were charged on 22
October 1987 with conspiracy to pervert the course of justice. It was alleged that
they had conspired in 1983 to have a charge of possession of an unlicensed
pistol against Mr Albert John Homer dropped and that Ms Walkuski had passed
a bribe to Detective Sergeant Douglas which had been accepted by Assistant
Commissioner Harvey in return for dropping the charge.

217 Homer had been working as a bodyguard for Ms Walkuski who was at the
time involved in running a brathel. Ms Walkuski had required protection and had
therefore provided Homer with two guns. When later trying to return one of the
guns to her, Homer was arrested and charged with the possession of an
unlicensed firearm. Assistant Commissioner Harvey did not dispute that the
charge against Homer had been withdrawn on his authority nor did he dispute
that the usual procedures had not been followed in the case. When questioned
by police he explained that the charge had been withdrawn because Walkuski
had provided information to police in the past. There was no evidence that
Douglas had played a part in Harvey's decision-making process.

218 In his reasons for judgment handed down on 11 March 1988,° the
magistrate, Mr Clynton Johansen, SM, noted that it was not disputed that the
charges against Homer had been withdrawn on Harvey's authority following
approaches to him by Walkuski. Harvey, as Assistant Commissioner (Crime), had
the necessary authority to withdraw the charges and the issue was therefore
whether his decision to do so in this case was improper.

219 Although police officers in earlier evidence before the Authority had said
that it would have been improper to withdraw the charges in the relevant
circumstances, when Mr Michael David, QC, senior counsel for the prosecution,
met with them they resiled from their earlier statements to the point where he
was nol prepared to call them as witnesses.'” Mr David Hunt, the South
Australian Commissioner ot Police, was therefore called to give evidence of the
accepted procedures for withdrawing charges. Mr Hunt's view as presented in
both his record of interview and his witness statement was that, where
information was to be provided in exchange for the reduction or withdrawal of
charges, the information had to be given in advance. The promise of future
information was not sufficient, nor should the withdrawal of charges be based on
the fact that information had been provided in the past, Further, the withdrawal of
charges against a friend of an informer would depend on whether the informer

splalcolim Robert Forster v Kevin Harvey, Patricia Walkuski and Eric Douglas
{unreported, Magistrates Court, Adelaide, 11 March 1988).
4 Camera Evidence, Meeting with Authority, 3 June 1988, pp.628-9.
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supplied substantial information in advance. However, under cross-examination
at the committal hearing Commissioner Hunt acknowledged that an officer, in
recommending the withdrawal of charges against an informer, would have in
mind the possibility of receiving information from that source in the future.
Commissioner Hunt also accepted that, given the right climate and if it were in
the public interest, charges could be withdrawn against a friend of an informer.

220 Thus Commissioner Hunt was forced to concede in cross-examination
that situations might arise which he had not taken into account in his witness
statement. Mr Johansen noted that Harvey's decision had been recorded in
writing and that he had notified the appropriate people within the Police
Department prior to the charges being withdrawn. The magistrate concluded that,
at worst, Harvey's decision to authorise the withdrawal of the charges may have
been contrary to an unwritten convention within the Police Department. While this
weakened the Authority’s case, the case did not fail merely on this account. Mr
Johansen also took into account the evidence of Homer, the prosecution’s chief
witness.

221 Homer had testified that on the day Douglas went to Walkuski's flat to
have Homer sign a surrender document for the gun, he had seen an envelope
containing a Jarge amount of money at the flat, that Walkuski had taken the
money with her into the bedroom where she had spoken with Douglas, and that
Homer had not seen the money when they emerged from the bedroom. The
inference drawn by the prosecution was that Douglas had left with the money, to
be passed on to Harvey in return for the withdrawal of the charge. The
magistrate found, however, that a reascnable jury would have great difficulty in
accepting Homer’s evidence as reliable. Apart from some inconsistencies in his
evidence, there was the fact that he was first asked to recount the details of his
evidence some four years after the relevant events. Moreover the only evidence
which touched on the payment of money was that of Homer and even if his
evidence were accepted it was only an assumption that the money had passed
from Walkuski to Douglas. The magistrate stated that in his opinion there was
nothing in the evidence which provided a foundation for that assumption. Nor
was there any evidence that any money had been passed to Harvey or any
evidence which might provide a foundation for the inference that Harvey had
received any money. Mr Johansen concluded that there was insufficient
circumstantial evidence of any agreement between the defendants. He was not
satisfied that a prima facie case had been established against any of the
defendants and he therelore dismissed the charges.

2.22  The Authority was subsequently criticised for bringing the charges against
Harvey, Douglas and Walkuski. As has already been noted, it is a misconception
to suggest that the Authority was ultimately responsible for the fact that Assistant
Commissioner Harvey and the others were charged. That decision rested with
the South Australian authorities. Nevertheless the Committee sought from the
Authority further information concerning its investigation in this case. The
Committee was informed that Mr Graham Morrish, QC, of the Melbourne Bar,
had provided the initial oral advice to the Authority that there was a proper case
to go forward. After the charges were dismissed at the committal stage, the
Authority sought the opinion of Mr Brian Sully, QC, on whether the evidence was
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sufficient to support the filing of an ex officio indictment. Once again it should be
emphasised that the decision whether to proceed in this manner would have
rested with the South Australian Attorney-General, not with the Authority.

223 Sully QC considered the evidence against Douglas and decided that none
of the material was capable of establishing or of helping to establish a case of
conspiracy against Douglas. He also considered the evidence alleging that
Walkuski had paid money to Douglas as a consideration for his participation in
the alleged unlawiul conspiracy. He took the view that Homer's evidence, even
taken at its highest, could not be said to demonstrate facts and circumstances
from which the only rational inference to be drawn was an inference of a corrupt
payment by Walkuski to Douglas and/or Harvey in connection with the withdrawal
of the charges against Homer. Nor coukd any adverse conclusions be drawn
from the fact that Harvey sent Douglas to collect the gun from Walkuski and
Homer. Having also considered the whole of the evidence given before the
Authority by Douglas, Sully QC did not find anything in that material which would
be admissible against Douglas in the nature of an admission against interest. He
concluded that it would not be justifiable to present Douglas for trial on an ex
officio indictment.

224 Concerning Walkuski, Sully QC found that there was no evidence to show
that she knew the nature and scope of Harvey's authority as Assistant
Commissioner (Crime) to procure the withdrawal of the charges against Homer,
that she appreciated that the only way to withdraw the charges would involve
some impropriety on Harvey's pan, that she had ever suggested that he behave
improperly, or that in any other way she had contemplated that he would or
might de something improper and unlawful in order to procure the withdrawal of
the charges. He conciuded that the evidence admissible against Walkuski, from
whatever source, was insufficient to warrant an ex officio indictment.

2.25 Sully QC was, however, of the view that Harvey's course of conduct in
withdrawing the charges gave rise to justifiable disquiet, firstly in relation to the
conflict between what Harvey said about his dealings with Stanford, an officer in
the Police Prosecutions Branch, and Stanford’'s own evidence before the
Authority on that point, and, secondly, in relation to the explanation given by
Harvey in his evidence 1o the Authority for his decision to withdraw the charges.
However, even if Stanford's evidence were accepted as correct, Sully QC
advised that this would only raise the level of suspicion about Harvey's conduct
and that a Crown case which could not be taken beyond suspicion could not
sustain a conviction for a criminal offence. Similarly, aithough Sully QC found
Harvey's explanation as to his reasons for withdrawing the charges against
Homer to be unconvincing, this again merely heightened the level of suspicion.
Although a reasonable tribunal of fact could not but conclude that the charges
against Homer should not have been withdrawn and that it was a misconceived
exercise of discretion by Harvey to authorise their withdrawal, this was not to say
that he had exercised his discretion corruptly or otherwise with criminal
impropriety. While it was conceivable that Harvey had authorised the withdrawal
of the charges for some personal motive representing an abuse of his legitimate
authority, it had to be assessed whether the evidence suggested that such a
motive could only have been a motive deriving from his complicity in the alleged
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conspiracy. Sully QC concluded that the evidence available could not support
Harvey's conviction as a co-conspirator with either or both Walkuski and
Douglas.

2.26 The advice which the Authority received from Sully QC may appear to
suggest that the entire prosecution of Harvey, Douglas and Walkuski was
fundamentally flawed and that it could never have succeeded. However, as
emphasised above, the Committee’s role is not 1o reconsider the findings made
by the Authority which led to charges being laid against the three accused.
Rather it is to review the process by which the Authority came to form the view
that Harvey, Douglas and Walkuski had engaged in a criminal conspiracy which
warranted them being charged. Three considerations are of importance. First, it
seems clear that the Authority had aiready formed the view that Assistant
Commissioner Harvey was corrupt prior to formulating the specific charges
against him. However, most of the evidence that the Authority had received was
inadmissible in a court of law. The withdrawal of the charge against Homer and
another matter, dealt with below, were the only two cases where the Authority
could put together a case based on admissible evidence."

227 Secondly, the Authority placed great reliance on the fact that it
considered that the explanations offered by Harvey concerning his withdrawal of
the charge against Homer were inadequate. It believed that its case did not
depend on the evidence of Homer being believed concerning the alleged
payment of a bribe, and that this evidence was merely ‘the cream on the cake of
the case'.” In the event, the evidence given at the committal hearing bore a
different aspect to that given before the Authority both because the police
ofticers who had given evidence before the Authority as to the proper
procedures for the withdrawal of charges resiled from their earlier positions and
so were not called, and because Commissioner Hunt was forced under
cross-examination to admit that he had been too dogmatic in his earlier
statements concerning the propriety of withdrawing charges for past information
received and withdrawing charges against the friend of an informer.

2.28 Thirdly, the Authority placed reliance on the oral advice of ils counsel
assisting in the inquiry, Mr Graham Morrish, QC, in its assessment of the
strength of the case it was submitting for the consideration of the South
Australian Crown Solicitor. The Committee does not wish in any way to criticise
the advice tendered by Morrish QC. 1t has not thought it appropriate to invite him
to appear before it and its remarks on the propriety of the course followed by the
Authority should not be taken as a reflection on Morrish QC's conduct in this
matter. The Committee notes that, in seeking Marrish QC’s advice, the Authority
was aware that he had been involved in the preceding investigation as counsel
assisting and that he had also been involved in another matter which bore on the
character of Assistant Commissioner Harvey, dealt with below. Because of
Morrish QC’s involvement in these matters, the Authority should have taken into
account the difficuity which counsel in that position might have had in
disentangling those matters bearing on the strength of the case the Authority

"'In Camera Evidence, Evaluation Inquiry, National Crime Authority, pp.187-9,
2fhid., p.183.
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was submitting for the consideration by the South Australian Crown Solicitor and
other matters not directly relevant to that case of which counsel would have
heen aware.

229 These considerations point to the importance of the decision whether to
prosecute being placed in the hands of someone who is not connected with the
actual investigation. Nevertheless it is difficult to see what blame can attach to
the Authority in these circumstances. It believed on the evidence before it and
on the basis of the advice of its counsel assisting that it had a case to go
forward to the prosecuting authorities. Given the view of the facts the Authority
had formed it is difficult 1o see what other action it could have taken. Indeed it
could very well have been criticised had it not placed the evidence it had
collected before the relevant authorities. With hindsight the case against Douglas
and Walkuski appears to be particularly weak and it seems doubtful that the
allegations against Assistant Commissioner Harvey alone could have sustained
criminal charges. However the Committee does not believe that the Authority can
be said to have failed in its statutory responsibilities in any way.

230 The only suggestion that the Committee can make is that in future in
preparing a brief of evidence to go forward to the relevant prosecuting agency
the Authority should seek the advice of a member of the bar who has not been
involved in the investigation in any way. It should be emphasised that this will not
prevent cases such as this occurring again. 1t would be toolish to expect that
charges brought as a result of investigations by the Authority will never fail, either
at the committal stage or at trial. it is always possible to take more than one
view of the facts in a case. Nevertheless the advice of independent counsel
could operate as a valuable safeguard against wrongful prosecutions.

Harvey, Willis, Knox, Hilton and George

231 Assistant Commissioner Harvey was also charged in New South Wales in
January 1988 with conspiracy to pervert the course of justice in conjunction with
Chief Superintendent James Michael Willis, then the head of the New South
Wales Drug Law Enforcement Bureau, and Messrs Lesley Knox, Howard Hilton
and Morres George. The charges related to a successful bail application made
in New South Wales in 1983 by an alleged drug dealer, Jamil Hawach, against
whom more serious charges were outstanding in South Australia. Hawach had
been arrested in New South Wales in February 1983 and had obtained bail from
the New South Wales Supreme Court in March of that year. The obtaining of bail
on that occasion was the subject of separate charges against Knox, Hilton and
George which did not result from investigations by the National Crime Authority.
A bench warrant was issued by the South Australian Supreme Court in April
1983 for the arrest of Hawach as a result of his failure to answer the South
Australian charges. On 11 April 1983 Hawach was arrested on this warrant in
New South Wales and in the normal course of events he would have been
extradiied to face trial in South Australia.

232 However it was alleged that as a result of representations made to him by

Knox, who was at the time a Detective-Sergeant in the New South Wales Police,
Willis contacted Harvey on 14 and 15 April 1983 and persuaded him to withdraw
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the opposition of the South Australian authorities 1o bail being granted to
Hawach. It was further alleged that on the morning of 15 April 1983 Harvey
contacted Detective Senior Constable Lockwood, who was representing South
Australia at the extradition proceedings in New South Wales which were due to
begin that day, and instructed him to agree to the South Australian extradition
praceedings being adjourned until the charges pending against Hawach in New
South Wales were dealt with and not to oppose the granting of bail to Hawach.
In the event Hawach was granted bail and absconded.

2.33 On 23 June 1988 the conspiracy charges against all five defendants were
withdrawn. The New South Wales Director of Public Prosecutions stated that
fresh material had become available which necessitated a reappraisal by him of
his decision that the case should proceed. The Commitiee has been informed
that the ‘fresh material’ referred to consisted of transcripts of telephone
intercepts which cast doubt on the veracity of the evidence of the witness whose
testimony was being relied upon to establish the conspiracy between Knox,
Hiltton and George.' The truthfulness of the same witness, known variously as
‘Mr X' and 'Mr Smith’, had also been the subject of criticism by the magistrate,
Mr Williams, in the prosecution of Mr Al Grassby.

2.34 The Authority was once again criticised for its part in the bringing of
charges which were subsequently withdrawn. Chief Superintendent Willis was
reported as stating that he was at a loss to understand ‘how the NCA issued a
summons against me, and whether such proceedings were issued through
malice, incompetence, paranoia or [as} a means to justify its existence’. He
called for an independent inguiry into the conduct of the National Crime Authority
in relation to the issue of the summons against him." Mr Willis' reported
comments ignore the fact that it was the New South Wales Director of Public
Prosecutions, and not the Authority, who was ultimately responsible for the
decision to charge him. The Committee has been provided with a copy of the
written advice given to the Authonty by Mr Graham Moarrish, QC, its counsel
assisting in this investigation, supporting the charging of Mr Wilis and his
co-defendants in this matter. Once again the Committee notes, without wishing in
any way to criticise the advice tendered by Morrish, QC, that it may have been
preferable for the Authority to have obtained the advice of a member of the bar
who had not had any prior involvement in its investigations.

235 It seems clear that Willis and Harvey would not have been charged had
there not been evidence of an alleged conspiracy between Knox, Hilton and
George to procure the bailing of Hawach. Unfortunately the case for the alleged
conspiracy relied heavily on the evidence of 'Mr Smith' who had supposedly
been a party to it. Because of the fact that it was not involved in the prosecuticn
of Knox, Hilton and George in the related conspiracy case, no criticism can
attach to the Authority in relation to the ‘fresh material’ which the New South
Wales Director of Public Prosecutions uncovered, leading him to drop the

"In Camera Evidence, Meeting with Authority, 2 September 1988, pp.701-4.
"“Canberra Times, 28 June 1988, p.7; Australian, 28 June 1988, p-3.

18



charges in both cases. Since the relevant transcripts of telephone intercepts
related to the case in which the Authority had not been involved, the Authority
could not by law have been given access to that material.

2.36 Contrary to the statements which he made to the press, Chief
Superintendent Willis had been provided with a full opportunity to provide an
explanation for his alleged approach to Harvey to request that the South
Australian Police not oppose the granting of bail to Hawach. Once again the
Committee is satisfied that the Authority carried out its statutory responsibilities
and that it could indeed have been subject to criticism had it not placed the
results of its investigation before the New South Wales Director of Public
Prosecutions. The fact that charges are withdrawn or dismissed or that a jury
ultimately decides that the Crown's case has not been proved beyond
reasonable doubt does not mean that the decision to lay the charges could only
have been reached through malice or incompetence.

Conclusion

2.37 The Committee is satisfied that the Authority took action in the two cases
dealt with above only after careful investigation and after receiving advice from
counsel that prima facie cases against the accused existed. The Authority
cannot be blamed for the fact that other factors, such as new evidence, arose
which resulted in the charges being dismissed or withdrawn. The Committee is
confident that the Authority carried out its statutory responsibilities correctly in
assembling admissible evidence in relation to these matters and in forwarding
that evidence to the responsible prosecuting agencies in the respective States.
The Committee believes that the public and the Parliament should not be misled
into taking a contrary view by self-interested statements made by persons such
as Chief Superintendent Willis and bodies such as the South Australian Police
Assaociation.
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CHAPTER 3

OTHER MATTERS
Suicide of Cassandra Ogdon

3.1 At some time during the night preceding 17 August 1987, the day on
which she was to have given evidence at an in camera hearing before the
Authority, a young Melbourne woman, Ms Cassandra Ogdon, committed suicide.
There was no suggestion that she herself had been involved in criminal activities
and the Authority had only wished to question her about her association with one
Peter James Cross while she had been an exchange student in Bolivia in
1980-81. Her family released a statement on 20 August 1987 claiming that Ms
Ogdon had received a threatening phone call two days before she was due to
testify before the Authority and saying that:

‘In view of the ftragic consequences of this horrendous
situation, no such inquiry should proceed ever again without
guaranteed protection for key witnesses.”

3.2 Because of the implicit criticisms made of the National Crime Authority,
and of the precautions it had taken in relation to Ms Ogdon’s safety, the
Committee has reviewed the Authority's conduct in this matter. The Coroner, Mr
Hallenstein, reached the following conclusions after investigating the
circumstances of Ms Ogdon’s death.? Ms Ogdon had been a student at Eltham
High School, Victoria, where one of her teachers had been Peter James Cross.
While Ms Ogdon was resident in Bolivia as an exchange student in 1980-81,
Cross wrote to her that he would be visiting Bolivia and that he was interested in
obtaining cocaine. Cross subsequently visited Ms Ogdon in Bolivia in July 1981
and she introduced him to a person or persons who were able to assist him in
his plans to export cocaine from Bolivia.

3.3 Despite denials by Irvin Rockman, the Coroner found that Ms Ogdon had
been present at premises in Malvern in August 1981 together with Cross,
Rockman and others in circumstances wheare cocaine was present and used.
The Coroner found that because of that gathering, Ms Ogdon reasonably
believed:

. that Cross had imported cocaine from Bolivia;

» that Rockman was involved with the importation;

. that she had information which required her silence; and

‘Reported in The Age, 21 August 1987, p.3.
’Record of Investigation into Death of Cassandra Amelia Louise Ogdon, 30 May
1988.
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- that her silence had been specifically demanded of her at the
gathering.

Although she did not discuss the matter with her family, she did mention some
details to close friends.

3.4 In {ate 1986 Ms Ogdon became aware that Cross had been arrested in
regard to illicit drug matters. Aithough Ms Ogdon made a written statement to
Authority investigators, the Coroner found that she had withheld the true extent
of her involvement with Cross’ purchasing of cocaine in Bolivia. He found that
subsequently she had been scared of the consequences of having withheld
information, scared of continuing to withhold information and scared of the
consequences to her and her family if she ware to tell all she knew.

3.5 Mr Hallenstein found that a number of incidents had fuelled Ms Ogdon’s
fears for her safety and that of her tamily. A live bullet had been found at her
parents’ home in May 1987, Rockman had pulled up in his car while she waited
at a bus stop and had glared at her in what she perceived 1o be a threatening
manner, she was visited at work by two men of whom she was suspicious and
who asked her about the contents of her statement to the Authority, and three
nights before she was due to give evidence belfore the Authority, Ms Qgdon had
received a phone call warning her not to testify.

3.8 Furthermore, her reading of the Authority’s subpoena and its attachments
suggested that the matters the subject of its inquiry involved not only cocaine but
also murder and violence. She believed that Christopher Dale Flannery, whom
she had been told was a ‘hit man’, was involved, although it is unclear how she
formed that belief as no names were mentioned in the Authority’s subpoena. it is
known, however, that Flannery was a friend of Cross, and Ms QOgdon’s beliei
may have stemmed from things which Cross had said to her in the course of
their association.

3.7 The Coroner noted that the Ogdon family had questioned the Authority’s
sensitivity in its handling of Ms Ogdon and its failure to investigate the bullet
incident, but he found that, in the context of her statement to the Authority which
did not give a full account of her involvement in Cross’ activities in Bolivia,
sensitivity had not necessarily been warranted. The Coroner concluded that:

‘In the end, there can be no criticism of the National Crime
Authority which, on behalt of the community, underakes
difficult investigations by fighting fire with fire.”

3.8 As regards the bullet incident, the Authority advised the Committee that,
after the matter was reported to an Authority investigator by Ms Ogdon’s mother,
the investigator had satistied himself that the finding of the bullet had no
apparent link with the Authority’s inquiries. He therefore advised Mrs Ogdon to
report the matter to the local police and assured Mrs Cgdon, who was
concerned that Peter Cross might somehow have been involved, that Cross was

Stbid., p.5.
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interstate in police protective custody. Mrs Ogdon gave the investigator the
impression that this satisfied her concern. Ms Ogdon in any case had expressed
no concern to any person about the finding of the bullet nor did she indicate to
the Authority that she was even aware of it being found.*

3.9 The Authority has also advised the Committee that at no time prior to her
death did Ms Ogdon indicate to the Authority any fears about her safety, nor did
the Authority possess any information that her personal safety was in jeopardy.®
There was no tangible evidence at the inquest that Ms Ogdon had been in
danger from a third party. The Committee therefore agrees with the finding of the
Coroner that there could be no criticism of the Authority in respect of Ms
Ogdon’s suicide.

3.10 However the course of events in this case does point to the need for the
Authority to be sensitive 1o the demands it places on individual witnesses. The
Committee has already emphasised in its report on Witness Protection® the need
for law enforcement agencies to respond to the needs of witnesses on a case
by case basis. A withess who has obtained knowledge of criminal activities by
pure mischance may be prey to all sorts of fears and may need reassurance
and understanding and the procedures followed by the Authority should be
sufficiently flexible to take account of these needs. The Commitiee suggests that
witnesses summoned to appear before the Authority at a hearing should be
given a contact number so that they may clarify any matters in relation to the
hearing about which they are uncertain and so that they may communicate any
tears which they may have as to potential threats to their safety in advance of
the hearing.

3.11 One further matter may call for attention. The Authority is required by
sub-section 28(2) of the National Crime Authority Act 1984 to provide to a person
summoned to appear at a hearing before the Autherity a copy of the relevant
reference under which the hearing is being held. In this case the relevant
refarence was that relating to the gangland murders in Sydney, and the
guestions in relation to Peter Cross’ drug-dealing activities were only brought
under this reference because of his association with Christepher Dale Flannery.
it is evident that the reference gave Ms Ogdon a misleading impression of the
seriousness of the matters which she had become involved in. Because the
references given to the National Crime Authority are very broadly drafted it may
be desirable that some more precise indication should be given to potential
witnesses as to the areas of questioning to be covered at hearings. Once again,
if a contact number were to be provided, witnesses could clarify any doubts that
they might have in advance of the hearing.

In Camera Evidence, Answers to Questions on Notice provided by the Authority,
30 August 1988, pp.1-2.

Sibid., p.2.

*Parliamentary Joint Committee on the National Crime Authority, Witness
Protection (Parliamentary Paper No. 193/1988, A.G.P.S., Canberra, 1988}.
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Telecommunications Interception

3.12  The Telecommunications (interception) Amendment Act 1987 amends the
principal Act by extending the power of the Australian Federal Police to obtain
warrants authorising interceptions to cover ‘serious offences’ as defined by the
amending Act. It also enables State and Territory police forces, the Nationai
Crime Authority and the State Drug Crime Commission of New South Wales to
obtain warrants authorising interceptions. However only the Australian Federal
Police can execute these warrants.

3.13 The Authority has established its own technical facilities to receive,
process and analyse telecommunications interceptions and at its meeting with
the Authority on 2 September 1988 the Committee inspected those facilities at
the Authority’s Sydney office. During the inspection the Committee was briefed
on operational aspects of the facilities, as well as the measures in place to
ensure the security of the facilies and the intercepted information. It was
brought to the attention of the Committee that the Authority’s costs in relation to
telecommunications  interceptions  were substantially increased by the
requirement that only the Australian Federal Police may execute intercept
warrants. As a result, interceptions must first be transmitted to the Australian
Federal Police in Canberra and then re-transmitted to the Authority’s facilities.
Thus even if, for example, the telephone service being intercepted is located in
Sydney, the product of the intercept must first be relayed to Canberra and then
returned to the National Crime Authority in Sydney. The Commitiee recognises
that this course is the direct result of the recommendations of the Joint Select
Committee on Telecommunications Interception, but it considers that the
Committee may not have been aware of the full cost implications of the course it
was proposing.

3.14 Recommendation: The Committee recommends that the costs of the
present system for telecommunications interception be carefully monitored
$0 that consideration may be given in future to the adoption of measures
which may reduce the costs of such interceptions to all law enforcement
agencies.

The Authority’s Resources

3.15 The issue of the Authority's resources has frequently been discussed at
meetings between the Committee and the Authority. The Committee’s concern
has been to ascertain whether the Authority’s resources are adequate or
whether the effectiveness of its investigations has been impeded by a lack of
financial and human resources. Aithough the Authority has consistently told the
Committee that it has not been prevented from undertaking any investigation
which it wished to pursue, it has on several occasions indicated that it could
achieve more under its existing investigations if it had increased resources.

3.16 At the Committee’s meeting with the Authority on 9 December 1988 the
Authority specifically raised with the Gommittee the problems it was experiencing
as a result of the Government's failure to provide supplementation to meet the
increased salary costs flowing from the 4 per cent Second Tier wage increase.
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The Committee subsequently wrote to the Attorney-General on 8 March 1989
raising this and other issues in relation to the Authority’s resources and the
Attorney-General responded on 9 October 1989 indicating that:

‘it was an integral part of the Government's wages policy that
no agency should receive supplementation for second tier
wage increases. Any other arrangement would be
fundamentally inconsistent with the overall wages strategy and
the efficiency principle which was the basis for wage
increases. | have not been provided with any convincing
argument that would justify my approaching Cabinet to seek
treatment of the NCA as a special case.”

The Committee finds the Attorney-General's statement difficult to reconcile with
the evidence given to it by the Authority which indicated that the failure to
provide supplementation would result in a $600,000 shortfall in its operational
budget meaning that it would have to curtail or abandon some of its
investigations.® It is possible that for some reason the Attorney-General was not
made aware of the consequences which the failure to provide supplementation
would have for the Authority. However the Committee suggests that in future the
policy set by Cabinet should not be so inflexible as not to permit bodies like the
Authority - which has a relatively small budget and thus a limited ability to absorb
salary increases by finding offsetting ‘efficiency gains’ - to be considered as
special cases.

3.17 More recent discussions with the Authority concerning its resources have
highlighted the problems the Authority is having with the very substantial costs of
witness protection.® The cost of protecting a single witness for a year can run as
high as $900,000, depending on the type of arrangements which are made. The
Authority cannot predict with any certainty what demands will be made upon it
for the protection of witnesses nor can it seriously contemplate saying to an
impontant witness who walks through its doors: ‘No, we are sorry, we do not
have the funds to pay for your protection. Try again in & months time.” Once
again the problem is that in the context of a relatively small budget the Authority
does not have the fiexibility to defer other expenditure in order to make available
additional resources for witness protection. The Committee suggests, as before,
that Government policy should be sufficiently flexible to deal with this problem
and it intends to keep the issue under review in its discussions with the
Authority.

3.18 The issue of human resources is one which has always presented the
Authority with problems, particularly in relation to the recruitment and retention of
senior lawyers. The Authority is faced with the situation that there is only a small
pool of suitable lawyers to fill such positions and it is competing against several
other government agencies (for example the Commonwealth and New South

7| etter from the Hon. Lionel Bowen, MP, Attorney-General, to Mr P. Cleeland,
MP, dated 9 October 1989.

n Camera Evidence, Meeting with Authority, 9 December 1988, pp.787-9.

®n Camera Evidence, Meeting with Authority, 2 June 1989, pp.877-9.
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Wales Directors of Public Prosecutions, the Independent Commission Against
Corruption and the New South Wales State Drug Crime Commission) as well as
the private sector to employ them. Australian Public Service salaries are not
compelitive with those being offered by the private sector and as a result senior
legal positions within the Authority remain unfilled. It should be noted that this
problem is not restricted to legal staff, however, and that the Authority has had
similar  difficulties in recruiting typing staff in Sydney because of the
uncompetitiveness of Public Service salary levels. The Commitiee raised this
matter also with the Attorney-General and he has responded that the problem of
attracting suitably qualified legal staff is one that aifects all areas of the Public
Service and that it is under current consideration.'

National Crime Authority Annual Reports

3.19  The Annual Reports of the Authority for the years 1985-86, 1986-87 and
1087-88 have been tabled in the Parliament since the presentation of the
Committee’'s Second Report. The Committee has examined the reports and
discussed issues arising from them with the Authority. it is satisfied that the
Authority has addressed the areas specified in sub-section 61(2) of the National
Crime Authority Act 1984 in those reports.

3.20 The Authority has frequently been criticised for the secrecy surrounding
its operations and the Committee has already commented on this in its Initial
Evaluation report."’ The Committee was pleased to note that the Authority has
been providing increasing information on its investigations in its Annual Reports
as those investigations have developed. Its report on Operation Silo which
provided extensive details of that investigation continued that trend. In addition,
during 1988 the Authority held its first public sittings since 13 December 1984,
partly no doubt in response to the Committee’s recommendation concerning
public sittings in its Initial Evaluation repart,'

Peter Cleeland
Chairman

November 1989

"“Letter from the Hon. Lionel Bowen, MP, Attorney-General, to Mr P. Cleeland,
MP, dated 9 October 1989.

""Parliamentary Joint Committee on the National Crime Autherity, The National
Crime Authority - An Initial Evaluation {Parliamentary Paper No. 378/1988,
A.G.P.S,, Canberra, 1988), pp.68-9.

thid., p.69.
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DISSENT BY SENATOR COONEY

| differ from the balance of the Committee on some matters dealt with in
the majority report.

Chapter 2 is in large part a defence of the National Crime Authority
against criticism made of it. Where warranted the Parliamentary Joint
Committee on the National Crime Authority should speak out against
unfair criticism of the body it monitors and reviews. However that body is
not so delicate a flower as to need the Committee’s help whenever an
adverse comment is made about it. Spirited comment is part of a free
and robust society. The Committee is a monitor and reviewer, not
guardian of the Authority.

In Chapter 2 the Committee analyses a number of specific cases dealt
with by the Authority. There are precadutions to be taken in naming people
when discussing these matters. The Committee strives mightily to do so
but it is well to keep in mind the inherent dangers in identifying people
when discussing criminal proceedings.

The following sentence appears in clause 2.12 of the majority report:

“If the Authority had in essence a right of veto over counsel it
would be as well placed as it could expect to be if it
prosecuted its own cases.”

This is followed by the recommendation set out in paragraph 2.13. | do
not support that recommendation.

in my view an investigative body should have no part in the prosecution
of a person it has processed. The ability to help determine who
prosecuting counsel will be breaches that principle.

There are authorities established to carry out prosecutions. | can see
nothing in the National Crime Authority Act to indicate the Authority is one
of them. Paragraph 2.8 of the majority report acknowledges this.

The majority report says the lack of funds may prejudice a prosecution.
See on this paragraphs 2.11, 2.12 and 2.13, If that is so the answer is not
to give more money to the Authority but to the prosecuting body. The
Authority is not the only body dealing with major crime and thera is no
reason why the prosecution of its cases should take precedence over
those of other bodies.

if prosecuting bodies are inadequate they ought t¢ be logked to. The
remedy is in changing them not the Authority. The Authority should do
what it was created to do: to investigate. Civil rights are best served
where there is a separation of investigators and prosecutors.
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10. I do not support the recommendation made by the majority in paragraph
3.14 of their report. This follows on from paragraph 3.13. The inference
from the two paragraphs is that the present system is too costly and
should be looked at. In my view interception of telecommunications is an
invasion of privacy which ought be allowed only in special circumstances.
It should be strictly monitored. The present system is the best way of
achieving this. When its cost in terms of money is measured against the
cost in terms of privacy of alternate systems | am prepared to see the
economic burden of the present provisions remain.

SENATOR B. COONEY
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APPENDIX 1

SUMMARY OF THE AUTHORITY’S MAJOR
SUCCESSES AND FA!LURES TO DATE



SUCCESSES
Reference No. 1

Saffron convicted of conspiracy to
defraud the Commonwealth, 26.10.87,
sentenced to 3 years (the maximum
sentence  available). Appeals on
conviction and sentence dismissed.

Reference No. 2

Kiss, C.H. Ng and C.L. Tung sentenced
to 8, 7 and 7 years respectively.

Fergusen and Royal convicted of drug
trafficking and sentenced on 2.2.87 to
16 and 14 years respectively. Appeals
on severity dismissed 11.9.87.

QOloyede sentenced to 7

imprisonment.

years

C.Y. Wong and S.C. Ng convicted of
drug trafficking and sentenced to 24
years and 20 vyears respectively.
Appeals on severity of sentences
dismissed 8.12.88.

Chow convicted of drug trafficking and
sentenced to 11 years.

Yau sentenced on 24.8.87 {o six and a
haif years, increased on appeal 1o 9
years on 11.12.87.

Tsoi sentenced on 14.9.87 to 7 vyears,
increased on appeal to 9 years on
11.12.87.

P.K. Wong sentenced on 2.2.88 to 11
years.

Sha sentenced on 3.2.88 to 11 years,
increased on appeal to 14 years on
16.6.88.

Souksamrane and Phanith sentenced on
21.4.88 to 14 and 13 years respectively.

3

FAILURES

Charges of conspiracy to bribe an
officer of tha New South Wales Police
Licensing Branch against Saffron and
Allen dismissed, 15.7.88. Decision
upheld by Court of Appeal, 7.6.89.

Charges against Duong and
Harland-Prinzler in relation to 408g. of
cocaine dismissed, 22.1.87. Charges
against Prinzler in relation to 1.8g. of
cocaine dismissed, 26.3.87.

Jury directed to acquit on charges
against Kardamitsis in relation to 1.7kg.
of cannabis resin on 3.3.88.



Yuen and F.J.H. Chen sentenced on
3.5.88 to 8 and 7 years respectively.

Luu sentenced on 29.7.88 to 10 years.

T.D. Nguyen pleaded guilty and
sentenced to 7 years on 5.8.88.
V.Q. Nguyen pleaded guity and

sentenced to 8 years on 24.2.89.

M.L. Wong convicted of drug trafficking
and sentenced to 12 years on 16.12.88.

Lian, Han and C.P. Tan convicted of
drug trafficking on 30.3.89 and
sentenced to 24 years, 18 years and 22
years respectively.

K.P. Tang pleaded guilty and sentenced
to 12 years.

Rueda, Sze and Chen convicted of drug
trafficking on 21.9.89.

Reference No. 3

Titfany sentenced on 19.6.87 to 12
years, Scott sentenced on 21.8.87 to 15
years, Cornwell, Bull and Webster
sentenced on 16.9.87 to 23, 18 and 10
years respectively.

Drew and French sentenced on
30.10.87 to 8 and 7 years respectively.

Rogers and Rowell sentenced on
3.12.87 to 13 and 12 years respectively.

Angelini pleaded guilty and sentenced to
9 years on 4.11.88.

Manstead convicted of drug trafficking
and sentenced on 2.6.89 to 7 years.
Appeal pending.

Reference No. 4

Huttley pleaded guilty and sentenced to
4 years and 2 manths for fraud, 23.6.80.
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Shen found not guilty of being knowingly
involved in the supply of heroin, 24.8.89.



Reference No. 6

Domican senmenced on 6.10.88 to 14
years. Appeal against conviction and
sentence lodged. Crown has appealed

inadequacy of sentence. Appeal by
Domican also.

Reference No. 7

Former Det., Chief Inspector Moyse

pleaded guilty to 17 charges relating to
the sale, supply and possession of
heroin, amphetamines and cannabis,
4.8.88; sentenced on 23888 to 27
years. On appeal, sentence reduced to
21 years on 9.12.88.

Rocco Sergi pleaded guilty on 9.9.88;
sentenced on 28.9.88 to 6 years. On
appeal reduced to 5 years. Deported to
ltaly.

Giuseppe Carbone sentenced on
16.1288 to 5 vyears. On appeal
increased to 7 years, 31.3.89.

33

Charges of conspiracy to pervert the

course of justice against Harvey,
Douglas and Walkuski  dismissed,
11.3.88.

Charges of conspiracy to pervent the
course of justice against another four
S.A. policemen withdrawn after the
principal Crown witness, Stamoulos,
declined to testify.

Charges of conspiracy to pervert the
course of justice against Grassby and
Giuseppe and Jennifer Sergi dismissed
13.5.88, and a stay of proceedings in
respect of a charge of criminal
defamation against Grassby granted,
26.5.88. Magistrate’s decision on stay
overiurned by NSW Court of Appeal;
upheid by High Court, 12.10.89.

Charges of conspiracy to pervert the
course of justice against Willis, Harvey,
Knox, Hilton and George withdrawn on
24.6.88 after fresh material became
available which cast doubt on decision
to prosecute.

Pietro Sergi acquitted November 1988
of production and sale of cannabis.

Charges of conspiracy to pervert the
course of justice against Sampson
withdrawn on 9.12.88 - no evidence
tendered after Sampson submitted
material providing a defence.



Malvaso initially given suspended
sentence; on appeal sentenced to 5
years, on 31.3.89. Appeal pending,

Reference No. 8

E. Barber, R. Barber and Ferguson
pleaded guilty to drug trafficking and
sentenced to 5 10 and 6 vyears
respectively.

Woods pleaded guilty and sentenced to
8 years. Appeal pending.

Amad and Elie Malkoun convicted of
drug trafficking, 24.8.89. Senienced on
19.10.89 to 18 years each.

Ordinary Investigation A

Ordinary Investigation B

Skelton
30.9.88.

sentenced to0 6 years on

Shand-Smith sentenced to 11 years 6
months on 30.9.86.
Yeow sentenced to 10 years on 30.1.87.

Gobindram sentenced to 10 years on
30.1.87.

Loh sentenced to 4 years 6 months on
10.6.87 - on appeal sentence increased
to 6 years 6 months.

W.K. Chan - pleaded guilty - sentenced
to 10 years on 12.10.87.

Cheah sentenced to 8 years on 8.2.88
and fined $400.

Charges of conspiracy to cultivate Indian
hemp against Rocco Barbaro, Stefano
Pelle, Dominic Nirta, Nazzareno Conti,
Con Leonidas, Salvatore Alvaro and
Antonic Cannistra dismissed March
19809.

Charges of conspiracy to cultivate Indian
hemp against Luigi Pochi, Antonio
Barbaro, Mario Cannistra and Giustino
Gambacorta no billed, May 1989.

Peter Briggs acquitted by direction on a
charge of stealing, 26.8.86

Onuszkawycz sentenced to 5 years - on
appeal charges dismissed.

Romeo sentenced to 5 years - on
appeal charges dismissed.

Bakranich acquitted in November 1988.



Grant sentenced to 6 years and fined
$400.

Marinovich sentenced 1o 5 years on
2.12.88.

Ordinary Investigation D

C.H. Lee and L.H. Chan convicted of
drug ftrafficking and sentenced on
16.10.87 to 15 years each. Appeals
against severity dismissed.

Maio convicted on 16388 and
sentenced to 18 years.

Asciak sentenced on 15.6.88 to 10
years. Appeal on conviction and
sentence dismissed.
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APPENDIX 2

STATISTICS PROVIDED BY THE NATIONAL CRIME AUTHORITY



LO'SY
659
641
20l

4

S04

6l
S0g
046°6

L
68-8861

00022
£ct

FOL
i

ori

ooe
0o¥'0e

E
t
88-4861

000'L2
65
182

oe

Gi

26

68y
000’ce

{12
(6)8
18-9861

000'e8
Gi6
9te

or

3] )

6EL
000'29

t Am vl
L Amn vl
98-5861

sabed [ejo1 ‘xoiddy

sBuyeay gz's Wi paAIgo8l SIgIYX3

sbBuueay gz's |B paulLIexs S8SSOUNAA

Sooap Buuslsy jo asn Buisuoyine palurIh sjuelep

LONEDIUNLILLIODa|S)
jo vondasisiu Buisuouyine pejueib sluBLIEA

Wy
vON J9pun uey) asmiayio pajuelb siueuem Yoeag

{ge's) siueuem yoireos io} suoydaey Aq suonedyddy
22's Japun pajuelb sjueuem yoseag
pajeaso Sayy ;0 JagquinN

£561 WY "upy
uonexe] (1)QE's pue 9g61 vv.Ll {w)p)gL's o
uensind Oy ay) wol; panvdal sebed e10) xoiddy

UOIBULIO)UI JO DINSOIOSIP 10}
£661 1oV “ulupy uonexe] (Z}e's Jepun apew Sispi0

LIOIJBULLIOJUL JO BINSOJDSK

104 9861 YV 1l {QHPI94'S 18pun spew $iepi0
{0Z's) slwawnosop aonpoid o] suswaxnbay
{0g'S} uoneUIOJUI YSILLIN O} Sjusiuainbay
(w51's) Suawnoiop 10} apew sisanboyy
(¢¥61°S) uonewoul 10} apewl sisenbay

AYYIWAINS 'SNOLLYOILSIANI OL DONILVIIH SOLISHIVLS

39



S

(OL1v
O} pPayllou W/ g
snid) geLiLLL's

8%
s9PE
82

gee's
s000'48

0c8'vs

ceg'er
oLyl
8/¢€

68-8861

0.6'8€8'81
09

989

G6

L97'6
000°'6E€

000'eie

00008
o0tL!1
66

88-4861

BOS'ESL'LL
4]

Sctv

i

66£'9
000'662

000°08

000'89
9E6
=i T

£8-9861

4

Olv o
payllou Wi 64
snd} ¥£0'62.2'2

le
rri
(A%

990'6
000°292

000'05S

000°GS
b6
»O61

98-5861

sugaling paysignd
sBuns vigngd

WOV (Hr) ay
0] juensind maiaal Jo SI9pI0 10} SuoneMddy

(15's)
uoisiaoad Aosa08s Jo yorauq yum pabiieyo suosiay

(pe's) pervoid sessauNm

o(enea ) suonebysaau
YON JO }inSal B SB Pas|e) SIUBLISSOSSE UONEXE |

PaUIRIqO SUOILOIALOYD
pig| sabieys

,suoiefigsaaul
YON JO ynsady e se pabieys suosiead

paleald sayy J0 BuInN

saouabe
Jsyio Ag yON o1 pepiacud sabed (elo) “xoiddy

(sol0} 810} "xoidde)
UM YAIBSS 18PUN YON AQ pazies suswnoog

safied 210} ‘x0Jddy
62°S Jepun yoN o1 painpoud sjuswnoog
62'S 4apuUn panss| $aoloN

40



'88-4861 Ul Joy ayl jO gE'S
o} wens.nd UNoY [esepa4 syl 0} suoneoldde xiS suem @say) ‘suoneddde 9SSy} O} UCIIPPE Ul “UlIlM papaasocid Jou auQ

‘SIUBWSSISSE panss] Asnonald Jo SUQISIASI [BIBASS SaRNPU|
‘gg-/a61 W pabiyeys suosiad aay Isuefie sefiseyo puonippe saphiou)|
-awil} puoodas e pableys ‘gg-/g61 W pabieys Aisnolaaid uossad suo sspnpou|

‘s1eleN
B pue suonebilsaaul SHOBUE||9osIW pue [eiauab woip Bulinsas 9SOyl SpNOU SONSHEIS UONOIAUOD pue sabreyo ‘sisau
e g Hebl ! v

‘wialsAs Ansifial pesusindwos s Auoyiny oyl Aq abed auo Ajuo Buiney se papiodsl ale
pue ‘pajeuBed useq arey Aljowny ayl Aq passisiBal pue paaiadal SIIBSLINOGP || JOU SB JUSWSIBISIapUn Ue St ainby syl

"PONSSI SSION
‘pley sBulesH

sjuelem Bunsixa Jo |emaual sepnjou)

‘AlIoyiny 8yl of S|qe|ieAB Sauy auoydals} JO Jaquinu ayt uo JWl §,39)0d jeiapad

uBjRASNY 3Yl O} 8NP Yitm papaadcid Jou alam (BIaAsS ‘pajuelB asem sidamuaiul sucydsal 1oy suolesldde B Sy

‘suoISIAcid S 93oAu O] Ajjewlo) AJBSS2JaUUN SEM )1 YDIyMm 10}
g “wEL'S 10 Nque syl ulyum Bule) ssiouabe WoJp UONBWHOJ 0} stsanbes [BUONIPPE Juasaides S1@joeIq Ul saunbly ay)

L
01

¢ 0 Q

41



68-8861

ogy

88-2861

6t
8¢
00g'e
96
08

¥9
005y

18-9861

0s
g€e
0004
06
68

T4
000} 4

98-5861

62°S J8pun yON 01 pasnpoud sjuswinsoeg
B6Z'S 19pUN PONSSI S8MON

sabfed [e10y “xosddy

sBulieay gz's Ul paagosal sHgIYX]
sBuueay gz's 1e paulLiexa S8SSBUNMM
{¢z'$) suodssed Jo Auanjap 1o} S18pIQ
Ppolesio sajy Jo 1squinn

jueem yoieas
22's ispun yoN Ag peztas sabed [vlo) xoiddy

2Z’'s lapun pajuelb sjuelem ysiess
paleald sajy jO JOguInN

£661 10V ‘ulwpy
uonexe| (1)Qg's pue ge6t w1l (Wi )9L's o}
wensind Oy ayl woly paaisosal sebfied ejo) ‘xouddy

UCIBLLLIO JO 9UNSO0SIP 10} £66 |
10V "ulupy uonexe) {/}JE'S Jopun apew SI8pi0

UOHBWLICJUL JO BINSO|ISIH

104 9€61 YV 1l {QHYISL'S Jepun apew siopiQ
(02's} sswnaop aonpoid o) sjuswainbay
{0e"s} uonewlojul ysiuiny 0] sjuswannbay
(¢B1°S} sjuswnaop 10y apew sisanbay

(¥6 1S} uoneBULIOjUI 10} 8peW SiSanbayy

L 'ON 3ON3YH343H

42



68-8861

00L°L

85-2861

St
G

08S'e

£8-9861

/N
000'SE

14

000'S

98-5861

PBUIRIIC SUOCIIDIALGY
pie| sabieyn
pafireys suosiad

saonap Buuslsy jo asn
fSuisuoyine palueib slueisem - seaaep Buuslsh

SUMIBUNLLIWODSIE)
jo uondaataul Buisisoyine pajuell sjueLep

paleeld s8jij JO IBqUInN

suelem
yons Japun yaN AQ pezias sabed |ejol xoiddy

10V ¥ON Japun ueyl Jsyio pajueli sjuelem yoseag
{E's) palosioid sassaulp

(gE's) aousping
Buipes|siw o asje) Bunb yum pafiieyo suosiag

{y2e 'gg ss)
SHNOY 8JBIG U0 LNOT) [RISP34 O} SUONBDLddy

{LE'S) 1S8.JE 1O} Panss| SIUBLIBAA
(0g's) 712 pusie &) ainje} yum pableyo suosiad

{4} pue (g)pg'ss
18puUn 4da aiels 10 Ym0 Ag usalb sBuiyeuspun

(8) pue (9)oE'ss
lapun pajuesb aq Alunww 1By} SUonepURWIWOIaY

safied jelo] ‘xoiddy

43



‘readde o} 109igng -uonnossoid
ur eduapIAe BuMOlo) PaNSSI SIUBWISSBSSE POpuUBWE IS8Rl - £8-9861 10} 000'088% JO a%e|d Ul JUBWISSBSSE papuswy g

"BWo0UI pRIBRIRPUNPBIBISISpUN SB O LY 8yl O} Payilou Ing ajep O} posrel AJ|BULIO) JOU SIB[OP UOI|IL [BI8ASS SNid b
'£8-9861 puUe 98-G861 |elo} ul suosiad om} "9’ 98-G861 W pafiieyo uosiad auo ay) sepndu| €

‘pauelb alam
BUOU - J08.I00UF 98-GBB| Ul Pojueib sjueiiem aaep Buuslsy pue 1dadcelul omy Bunedipul ‘papmoid Aisnommeld sainbBiy g

"S92UEISWINDIIG O} anp pasde| sBuIPaadol4 "paaIes Jou INg paulelqo (Lpe's 1epun apiQ |

- - (anfea ¢) suoiebisasul YN 1O INS3I B SE uaye)
sBuipaaoocid si1esse jo aunyepoyAleusd Aeunsey

- JUIGGH'2S ,000'088 - {enjea §) suonebisaau
YON JO NS84 B SE pasiet SJUSWSSISSE UONEXE |
alIAIaS
Ayunuiuog
- SiNoY Q0 X |
sIAg x| - - (010 Juswuosuduw sieah) pesodw senjeuaq

68-8661 88-1861 £8-9861 98-6B61



Pra
0L
061
or
02

68-8861

86l
174

0S¢

88-1861

£18-9861

S8l
6¢c

00¢

98-5861

62°'S Japun yoN 0} paonpoid sjuswinsog
62'S Japun panssi SAoNON

safied |ejo1 "xouddy

sBunesy gg's w paaadas SUqQIYX]
sBuieay gZ's 18 pauiLIExa S8SSOUNM
{pes) suodssed jo AaAlap 10} SIRPIO
PalRaIY Sl JO JRQUINN

lUBLEM YOIESS
2Z°'Ss Ispun yON Ag pezias sefied |v1o} ‘xoiddy

ZZ's Jepun pajueil sjuelem yoIeag
palesId Sa|y 10 JBqUINN

£S6 | WY "uIpy
uonexef (1)Qe's pue 96l vy Ll (wlp)gL's ol
wensund 01y 9y woi passoal sabed |10y "xoiddy

LOJEBLLIOJUI O 3INSO|ISIP 10} £G61
10y "Ulupy UoREXB] (/}JES 18pun spew s1epiQ

UCHBULIOU) JO @INSOJISID
10} 961 YY1l (QHP)Q1'S J8pUN @pew S1apI0

{0Z's) swawnosop sanpoid o) suawalnbay
{02°S) uoewlOl Ysiung o) sjuswalinbay
{¥61°S) SIUSWNO0P J0) epeW sisanbay
{(y61°5) uonewiojul Joj apew sisanbay

€ 'ON 3ON3Y3d34

45



el
iy
9z
£V

cl

0ce
0e

ose'st

68-8861

gt
1517
e
914

g1

005°L
¥e

004’y

88-4861

gl
Go
6¢
4]

V/N

000'2

ol

218-9861

Li
4
vi
0c

Y/N

00E’L
6l

LGE'S)

98-5861

PBUIBIQO SUOIISIALOT)
prer safineyn
pafiieys suosiad

saoap Buiuaisy) Jo asn
Buisuoyine pajuess sjuenem - seansp Buiuelsr]

SUCHEIIUNUILLIODAS)
jo uondaoseiul Buisuoyine pejueib syuelepn

polesio sa|y JO Iequiny

SIUBLIEM
yans Jepun yoN AqQ pozias sabed |ejo) xoiddy

VY YON Jepun uey J1eyio pauesl sjueurem yorees
{pes) palvaioid sesseuppa

(ge's) souspiae
Buipesisiu 10 aspe) Buinb yum pabileys suosiag

(vee '2e'ss)
SLNOY BlBlg 10 N0 |eiaps4 o] suonediddy

(L£'S} 1SauB 10} PBNSS] SIURLIEAA
{0g's) 219 pusye o} ainpey yum pebiieys suosiag

{2} pue {g)og'ss
iB8pun ddqg aieig o um,D Aq uaaib sBumeuspun

(8) pue (g)og'ss
Japun paesd aq Ajunwwl 1Y) SUOEPUSLLILIODSY

safied [0} "xoiddy



{OLv o
payyou osfe
B8WIoJU
paJejaspun
pajelsiopun
ut we gy smd)
000°8SL LS

auy 00LEX1
Ul 000ESX L
auy Qo0vixe
g9 JAS +

auy QOocsxL
‘SIAZXL

sihgx| ‘s1hQLx]
SIAZLXZ
‘sIAgLX]
SIAZZX L 'SIApEXL

68-8861

{Olv o
paynou osfe
auoou
paseoapun
/peielsIapun ul
000°09v$ snid)
000'685$

ag90x| ‘auy
00G$ + 4ALX1
auy 0SS +
SYILIgLX]
‘SIAGX |

SIAZXL ‘SIAGXL
SIAGXZ ‘SIAL LX)
SIACLX|

‘SIAp X2
suoieuodapxy

28-1861

000°0C -

005'221 000'00F%
SIApEX |

‘'sihQex i

SIAGLX]

‘SIAp XL

SUAL LX) ‘SIAzXL  SiAgX|
‘SYIUQW pX | ‘SIksxg IALXL
‘aut} 00Z$X 1 g9 siAfIx|
suoneuodapxs  suonelodopxg
18-9861 98-6861

'£8-986 Wl pabieys osje suosied om] S8pnpu| |

(onqea ¢} suonefinsaaul yON JO YNSal B SE UDBNE]

sbuipaanold sjesse jo aunyapo)/Ajeusd Aeunoed

{anjea ¢) sucyebinsaaul
¥YON 10 UNSal B SB PIsiel SUDISSISSE Uonexe |

(oy@ wewuosuduw sresi) pesodul saleuad

47



68-8861

051

88-1861

0Le

513
0002

18-9861

¢St
¥6

oot

98-5861

62°S lapun yON 0} peanpoid sjuawnosog
62°S JOpUN PANSSI SOMION

sabed (2101 "xoiddy

sBuuesy gz's ul pamasal suqIyx3
sfuleay gz's 1B paulWEXs SOSSBUNpA
(pg's) syodssed jo AseAlep 10} SRPIO
palealo sajy Jo Jaquunp

WelRMm LoJeas
2Z's iapun yoN Ag pezies sabed [el0) 'xoiddy

Z22's Jopun pajueiS sluslem yoieeg
pelealia S8} JO JAgLUINN

£661 107 "uwpy
uonexe) (1)3e's pue 9e64 vy ll (w)r)gL's ol
wensind Oy 9yl woly paaletal sabed [B10} xosddy

UOIBWLIOJUI O BINSOOSIP 10} £661
1oV ‘ULpY uonexe] (/}JE'S Japun apew SI8pI0

UCIBLLLIOJI JO BINSOIOSIP
10) 9861 YY1l {QHP)9L'S 18pun apew 5180

{og's) swswnoop aonpoid o) sawadinbay
{0Z's) uonewcul ysing 0} siuswainbey
(v81°S) sluswnoop 10} spew sisanbay
{V61°S) uonewIolu 10} epew sisenbay

€ 'ON FON3IYH313Y

48



68-8861

008

88-L861

el
5¢

cEl

Gel'l
b

196't1

18-9861

Ja

St
£
113

14

2148

Qos'et
v
3

90£'92e

98-5861

PBUIBIGO SUOHISIALOY
e sebseys
Jebieyo suosied

saownep Buels) jo asn
Suisioyine pajuelb siueliem - sanap Buualsi

SUCIEIIUNLILLICDD| )
0 uondaassiul Butsuoyine pajueih SJUBLIEAA

peleaid sa|i JO IequinN

sjuBLIEM
yons Jepun ¥aN AQ pazias sebed fejol xoiddy

10¥% YON 19pun uey auio peluesh siuelem yoiesg
{pe's) pejoslosd sesseulipy

(gg's) souspine
Buipessiw 10 asie} Buimb ypm pebleys suosiad

(wee ‘ee'ss)
SUNDY) 91Rlg 10 UNOY) |Bi3pa4 0} suoneolddy

{1£'S) 1SBIIB 10§ PANSS| SJUBLIEAA
(0£'s) D10 puane 0] ain|ey yum pabineyo suosiag

(2} pue (G)og ss
lspun 44Q 21eis 10 yym,D Ag uaab sbuyelapun

(8) pue (9)og'ss
Japun pejuelb ag Ayunwil Jeyl suciepuswiwoIay

safied [e101 "xo1ddy

49



ucHuUDIen
aipolad
SYIUZLX]

ouy 000 +$

+ 999 SIAExg
auly 00ESX|
SIAZX| "SIABXE

68-8861

«052'6E¢
6.2'9

auy QGgHX 1
‘e JAEXZ
‘uonuaep
aipouad JIALX]
‘auy} 0O0ES
+3ALX] fauy

001 % + Syl
S1A/X| ‘Bul
0002% + SIAgX|
SIAQLX L 'SIAg x|
SIAC XL 'SIAGLX]
SIAR X | ‘'SIACZX]

88-1861

£86'69E'E

H6'902°1

SHoaM
g-9'syiu g
sauy u 0ov$
SIAZL

18-9861

"palieo) 184 10U Ing 98ISNI] [BIOLO JO [CAU0D JBpun padejd SI9SSE JO anjeA Jo alews3 ¢

"SESSJBA0 PAlOIAUOYD pue pabieys suosiad XIS sepnpup 2
88-/861 pue /8-986| WOl panunquoy

(anjea ¢) suorebisaAu; yON JO JNsal B Se uaye}
sBuipesooid sjesse jo sunjispoyAlfeusd Auelundey

‘$E0'62E'S (anpea §) suonebyssaul

YON 0 YNSal B SB pas|es SJUBLISSISSE UONBXE |

ggo JAg ‘seuy
spunod pog
‘aul} 5/62% {012 wawuosldwi siesd) pasodw sajeuaq

98-6861

50



ve
ve

68-8861

T4
000t

oy
6L

£9
000's

88-2861

000°02
oLe
08

a0t
00L'y

{02)
(8}
18-9861

000'S.
89/
£6

ore
0008}

(8)
(2)
98-5864

62°S JIopun yON 0} padnpoud sjuawnooq
§2'S 1apun panssI SaoloN

sebed |e10} ‘xosddy

sbBuweay gz's ul paaesai SUGIYX]
sBuueay ge's 1e paulLIEXa SasSaUlp
{pg's) suodssed 10 Asamap 10} SIBRIO
pajeasd sl JO ISquInN

JBLEM Y2i8as
22'S lapun yoN Ag pazias saffed jejo] ‘xoiddy

2Z's Jepun pajuelh sjueiem yaless
palesId S8l 10 JISqUINp

£S61 107 "ulwpy
uogexe| {1)Qg's pue 961 vvll (W)(y)gL's ol
wensind Q1Y 9yl woel paaeoal seffed |ejol 'xoiddy

UOCIIEWLIOI JO BINSOOSIP J0) €661
10V "UIWpY uonexe | (2)Qe's 1spun apew sispi)

UCIBLLLICUI O 2INSO|0SIP
10} 9861 YV LI {QHP)9L S 18pun apew SiBpi0

(0Z s) swawnaop sanpoud o] sjuswaanbay
{D2’'s) uonewIojUI YSuIng 0) siuawalinbay
{¥B1'S) sluswinoop 1o} apeul sisanbay
(Y61 °S) UoeUIOl 10) apeu sisanbay

¥ 'ON FONIFHIIIH

51



€C
vl

001t

68-8861

obl¥
6

144

PA

000y

88-2864

564

¥iN
0082

00022
ig

18-9861

V/N

000°00G <
g4

98-5861

PaUERIQO SUOIIJIALIOS
pre; sebieyn
pafiieyo suosiad

saomap Buiualsy jo asn
Buisuoyine paluelf sjueiem - sasinap Sulusis!t

SUOIBIIUMUWOISIR)}
10 uondaassiul Buisuoyine pajuelB sluelepp

pajeald Safy JO JaqUINN

SjuBIRM
yons Jepun yoN Aq pazias sabied |eio) ‘xoiddy

19¥ YON 48pun uey) syio pajueih sjueuem yoieeg
{res) poroslosd sassauPs

{££'s) aouapine
Buipesisiw o asje) Buini yum pabreys suosiay

{v2e '2e'ss)
SUNDY) BJBIG 10 UNGY) [BIgpa4 O} suoleolddy

{1£'S) Is8llE 10} PONSS] SIUBLRAA
{0£'s) 1o pusne ol ainje} Yyum pabiieyod suosiag

{£) pue {(g)ogss
lapun 4d4Q 31B1S J0 um,0 Agq uanib sBunjepspun)

(8) pue (9)og'ss
Japun pajuelb aq Aunwiwg 1Byl SUoREPUSLILICOaY

sabied |el0} xoiddy

52



"SJUBLISSESSE MOU SB {|8M SE 1eaA SNOIARId WO JUBWISSSSSE POpUsSWE Sepnppul g
-4 uonebnsaau jo ynses € Se Pasiey  /
-28-9861 W pabieys suossad aay syl Jsuiehe sabiieyo [euolyppe 2yl sepnoul 9

‘pabieys usaq Os[e ARy SUOSIad JAYI0 [BIDADS ‘b MOU SI Suosiad aal asay)
1suiefe pie| safieys @101 'g8-/861 W palsye aiem 28-9861 W pabieyo suosiad ueaas ay jo any 1suiebe pre; sefireyn ¢

‘ag-2861 W pabieyo i1suy vossed
e Jsuebe Jybnoig sebieyo puoses pue ‘pableys mou (g1} ul suosied g1 o'l 'gg-/861 ul pebieyd uosied auc sepnjou)

‘gg-£861 pue 7g8-9861 Ul pabreys (@10} ul suosiad gy ‘9l ‘28-9861 ui pebleyo osie suosiad Jnoj sapnjou) ¢
‘pajhdaxe alem SJUBLIBM UJIEDS 953Ul jo ¢ AjUQ ¢

"UONBULICHUL 10} PIPNIOUL 318 pue
UOIOSS 1BY) JO NGWE [eJauab syl uiyKM [19) Sisanbal asal) INg ‘Y6 1'S Japun sisenbas [eulo) aXBw O} Alessadau Jou sem ) |

- - {oniea §) suonebnsaaul yON JO JNSSE B SE USNE]
sBuipasscid siesse Jo ainpauoyAeusd Arelundad

{000°056'L
- BLTYYL 660'v8Y'01 - (anfea §) suonetnsaaur
YON JO }INS8J B SE PAsIB SJUBWISSISSE LUONEXE |
sihizx| auy 002$ - - (918 wewuosudw sieak) pasodul seeusd

68-5861 88-1861 189861 98-5861



/N
68-8861

ViN
88-1861

/N
18-9861

0s1t
6t
000°2
9

66

g8
00c'2

98-5861

62°S J9pun yoN 0} paonpold suswnoog
62°S IBpun pPanss! SaoNON

safied ejo) ‘xoiddy

sBuuesy gg's Ul poAloal SUqIYX]
sBulesy gg's Je pauilueXe SISSaUNM
{te's} suodssed jo Aeaep 10} siapiQ
p@leals saly Jo JequinN

UBLEM YDIRaS
22's Japun yON Aq pazies sabed ejoy ‘xosddy

22's Jopun pajuell sjuBLEM IO
pPalED1d S8} JO JAYLUNN

€961 OV "Ulwipy
uonexe} (1)Qe's pue 9e61 Yy (Ww)p)el's o}
wensind O]y ay) woyj paneds) sebed ejo) “xoiddy

UCIBULLIOU JO SINSOOSIP I0) £G6 |
0V "ulwpy uonexe] {/)ae’s 1apun epew S1I9pI0

UOHBWLIOJU JO INSO[ISIPD

10} 9861 Yv.LI (QHYP)QL'S Japun epew siapiQ
{0g's) swewnsop sonpoud 0} sjuswainbey
{02'S) uonewlojul ysiwny o} sjusweannbayy
{v61°S) sluswnoop 1oy epew sjsenbay
{v61°s) uoneuwlojul 10} apew sjsenbay

S 'ON FJON3IY3II3H



¥/N

68-8861

VYN

88-4861

YN

£8-9861

958's

98-5861

PAUEIQO SUOIMIAUCY
pre| sabreyn
pafieyo suosiag

saonap Huilals) Jo asn
fursucyine palueib siuelem - seaiaap Buwalsn

SUOIBIILNWWIOD3[8)
10 uondsasatul Buisuoyine pajuelf siuelrepn

pBjeasd Saj|y JO JBGUINN

SJUelIEM
yans Jspun yoN Ag pezies sabed 1ol xoiddy

1OV YON fopun uey) 1ayio palurib sjuelem ysleag
(bE-s) poroaloid sassauNp

{eg°s) aousapInG
Guipea|siw Jo as|ey Bunb yyum pebreyo sucsiad

{yeg ‘2e°ss)
SURNOD) MBS 10 UNOY) elBpS. 0} suoneoyddy

(1£°8) 159018 10} panss| SJUBLIBAA
(0£'s) 218 pusje o} ainje) yum pabieys suosiad

() pue (5)oe"ss
lapun d4d4qQ #1els 10 yym,2 Aq usnb sBuppeuspun

(8) pue (3)0E'ss
Japun pawielf aq Ajunwiw 1Byl SUoHEpUSUILLIDIaY

safied jejo) "xoiddy

55



Y/N

68-8861

¥/N

88-.861

V/N

18-9861

Olvy

Aq apew AjeUl
SIUBLISSOSSE
uo "Ojul ouU
‘Pelilou wip'pg

98-5861

(angea §) suoebilsaAul YON JO JYNSS) B SEB Usyel
sBupeasoid sjasse jo anjepoyAeuad Aleunodag

{enea ¢) suoiebysaaul
YON JO Ynsal B Sk pas|el SJUSLISSASSE UONBXE |

{019 uswuosudi siesk) pasodus saleuad

56



sel

68-8861

gE
L
005
8¢
£e

88-718614

FAYS
59
0e
0l
=18

at
009°t

18-9861

00e

98-586/

62°S 19puUn yON 01 paonpoid sjuswnao(]
62’5 Jepun pansst Sa2foN

safed |ejo} "xoiddy

sBuleay gz's Ul poAl9D9) SHOIXT
sBueay gg's e peulWwexa SOSSSUM
{p2's) suodssed jo AaAISp 10} $i9pI0
pa1eai 9| JO ISqUINN

jUBlLERM DJess
22's Jepun yoN Aq pazios sabed |ejo] “xoiddy

Z2's 1apun pajuelf sjueiem yoseag
pa1eaId Sailj JO BGUINN

£961 10V "Upy
uonexej {1)as's pue 9esl vyl (WpigL's ol
wensind O1vy a2yl woy paaedal sabed jejo) -xoiddy

UONBLLLIOJUI JO 2INSD|ISIP 10} £661
10V "UiWwpy uonexe] (7)E's Japun apew siapi)

UOIFELLLIOJUl JO SINSO|ISIP
10} 9861 YV1I {QHP)9L'S 1apun apeus s18pIQ0

{0z 8) swewnaop aanpoid 0} sjuswsinbay
{(DZ's) vonewIo]I ysIiLng o} sjuswainbay

(yB1L'S)
SIUSINDOP 10} pBW Sisanbay

{¥8&1'S) uoneuwloju 10} apew sisanbay

9 'ON FON3Y3I4IIH

57



002'e

68-8861¢

el

cc

088

86-2861

0e

riv'et

18-986!1

86

98-9861

paueIgqo SUONJIALDD
piej sabieyn
pabreys suosiad

saoinep Buusisy jo asn
Buisuouine pajuelB siuelem - sadimaep Buuals

SLOIESIUNILIDI S|
jo uondaasalul Buisiioyine pajuelf sjueLepp

paesid Syl O JAQUINN

SIUBlIeM
yons Jspun yoN Aq pezies safied [ej0) xoiddy

107 YON 18pun uey) Jsylo pajueld sjueiiem yoress
{rE'S) pa10al0:d SaSSaUNM

{£e's) aouaping
Bupeasiw lo asjet GuiaB yum pabieys suosiay

(v2g ‘2ess)
SUNOY B1ELG IO UN0Y [BI8P84 0} suoledddy

(1£°5) 1S8.IE JO} PANSSI SIUBLIEAA
(0g°8) 218 puene 0} aIn|ig yum pabiseyo sucsiag

{£) pue {g)og'ss
lspun d4dq 81e1s 10 yum,D Aq uaalb sBuiyeuspun

(8} pue (g)og'ss
lspun palued aq Aunwws 1Yl SUOREPUSWIWOSSY

sabed |ejo} "xoiddy

b8



‘OLV 34 Jo uonuaile ayl o} wbnoiq awoaul

auy Q1$X4
(000°1%) aul 00gHX1L
SIApLX]L gao siAp x ¢ eul 0pGedxL

68-8861 88-4861 28-9861

98-G861

paJe|23pun;paleISIapUN Wi 000'000'6E INQ Panss! SJUBWISSasse ON 2

‘Buipuad sjeaddy |

{anjea ¢) suonefnsaaul yoN 1O | NsSal B se uaye;
sBuipasooid si1asse jo ainyapolAlevad AlBiuno94

(anea §) suonefnsaaul
¥ON JO Ynsal B SB Pasiel SIUAWISSSSSe Uolexe |

{019 Wawuesudu sieah) pasoduwll saleusd

o0
Te )



lge
Sie
000'e2
LES

0G

1]
coe‘e

68-8861

GG
IEE
000'1Z
cve
662

L6¢

90¢
VA

b
88-.861

0LE
7
0v'e
<8

68

e
000'81

18-9861

000'¢

98-5861

62°S 1apun yHN 0} paonpoid Sluswnsog
62'S fopun panss SaoloN

safied |10} "xoiddy

sbuueey gz's ul pensdal SUqYxg
sBuureay g2's 18 PBUIIEXD SASSBUIM
{¥g's) suodssed jo Aioayap io} s1epiQ
poless $a|l jJO JegquINN

uenem |ysiess
2¢'s Japun woN Aq pazies sebed [e10) xoiddy

2Z's Jepun pajuesd sjuenem yoreas
PIIESID $8|I} JO JBGINN

£961 10V "Uiwpy
uoitexe] (1)ae's pue ge6l vy Ll {(wiip)gl's o)
wensind )y 9yl woi paaRda) sebed |10} "xoiddy

UCHBUWIOI JO BINSO|ISIP I0) £G61
10V "unupy uonexe] (/)QE's J9pun spew SIepID

UONBLLIOJUI JO INSO[DOSIP
10} 9E61L YV 1! (QHYIZL'S 18pun apew s1api10

(02's) sewnaop asnpoid 0} sluswalinbey
(0g"s) uonewio ysiuiny o} sjuswannbey
(v61's} suswnoop Joj apew sisenbayy
(w618} uoneuo J0j apew sisanboay

4 'ON FONFYI4IH

60



Ll
cl
\E
cv

18

118"}
Qo0'ot

274
i

9e0'81

68-8861

G

(¥
er
4]

<

A
000°'S02

L0k
4

000'59

88-4861

o M~ 0O -

0ce
00002

Gl
Z

c

002'9€

18-9861

98-6861

PaulBIgo SUONOIALIOYD
pie| sebireyn
pabileys suosiad

saomep Buuasy jo asn
Buisuoyine paueib sjuelem - saoinep Buuelsn

SUOIEDIUNLIWLIODA|S)
10 uondasssiu Buisuoyine pajuesf slueem

paleals sa|y JO JBqunN

SIUBLIEM
yons Japun yoN Aq pazies sabed [elo) ‘xoiddy

19¥ ¥ON Jopun uey) Jayio pajueld sueiem yosesg
{pe-s) paloalold SaSSOUNAA

(pe°s) souapIAg
Buipee|siw 1o asiey Bumb yum pabieyd suosiad

(vee ‘ze'ss)
SUNOS 8181S 10 HNOY Jelspad o) suohedddy

(1LE'S) 1S8Me 10} PONnsSSI SIBLIBp
{(0g's) 018 pusie 0} ainjie}) yum pableyo suosiag

(2) pue (g)og'ss
Bpun 44q @iB1S 1o yym,n Ag uaalh sBunjeuspun

(8) pue {(g)og'ss
lepun pajuesf g Aunww jByl SUolEpUsSWWolaY

sabed je10} "xoiddy

61



{OLv 0l paynou
Os)e aLuodUl
paieapun
/pareisiapun

uj 000'09% snid)
LL0'LLLLS

auy 0oF$X1
aae) 1A1X| ‘el
0061$x1 ‘gg9o
1Az + (dsns)
SYIUG X ‘auly
00z2%$x| ‘auy
PESEX| ‘SIAGXE
auy Opl$X1L
SIAZX| ‘SIALZXL

68-8861

‘apew UBaq aakY IV (Hrav 2y ol luens:nd Maiaal Jo sieplo 10} suonesidde om] |

(OLv 1 payyou
Qse awoduwl
paiejoapun
/pajelsiapun

u 000'05e$
snid)000'869°'G$ -

pevrs Bulei0)
seuy g

ga9 siAgxg  euy DOOSEX]

88-1861 28-9361

98-5861

(anpea ¢) suonefinsaaul yoN JO §Nsa) B SB ueyel
sBuipeasoud sjasse jo aunpapoyAleuad Areunsag

{anjea ¢) suonebysaau;
VON 10 YNsa. B Se pasiel SJuUBLISSASSe Uoiexe |

(919 ewuosudw) siead) pasodw seieuad

62



1254

iE
000'61
68l

Se
002
000‘8

61
Lt
Ge9'L

L
68-8861

8¢
0052

88-864

(1)
N{}
18-9861

A1)
A1)
98-58614

62'S 1apun yoN 01 paonpoid sjuawnsog
B2°S JOpun PaNsSsI SAdNCN

sabied jejo} ‘xoiddy

sBuueay gg's W paaleoal suqux3
sBuueey gz's JB psuILEXa SSSSOUNM
{pz's) suodssed 10 Asaep 10} S18pI0
pejeald sajy Jo JPquIny

JUBLEM YOIBES
22's iapun yoN Aq pezies sebed (g0} "xoiddy

2g's Jopun pajuelb sjueLem ysees
pejea.d Sa|y JO JBqUINN

£S61 WY "ulwpy
uonexet (1)QJe's pue 9£61 vl (w)iy)9i's 0}
wensund O1v 2yl woyy paaeoal sabed (e1o] ‘xosddy

UOHEBLLIOUL JO BINSOJDSIP 10} £G6L
10V uupy uonexe] (/HJE's sspun apew SIspi)

UOI}BWLIOJUL JO BINSO[ISID
104 9g61 Vv 1l (QHP)QL'S Japun apew $18pI0

(0z's} sjuawnoop aonpoid o) sjuawsiinbay
(0Z'S) uoewIoI YSIIn o) sluawainbayy
{(¥61's) swawnaop 10 apew sjsanbey
(w61 S} uoneuloju 10} epew sisanbey

8 'ON ION3IYI4IY

63



ri

oo

Geg's

68-8861

7
gl

008'0}

88-i861

9t
cl

Y/N

or
Zl

18-9861

98-5861

PauBIqo SUQNIAUOY
pe; safireyn
pobireyo suosiag

saolaap Buuals jo asn
Buisuoyine pajieif sjuelem - saonap Buiualsnn

SUOKRB2IUNLILIODS|3}
10 uondassaiul Buisuoyine pejuei sjueLeps

paeald Sa|y JO JBquINN

sjuBRLEM
yaons Japun gopN Aq pazios saffed o} xosddy

1OV YON Japun ueyl Joyio paueib sjueiem yosess
{(pe's) pelosioid SasssuNm

{g£'s) aouapne
Buipeesiw o asie} Buialb yum pableyo suosiay

(vee ‘ze'ss)
SUN0S) SIBIG JO LUN0Y) [elaped o} suoiedddy

(1L£°S) 1s8llE J0) PENSS) SIUBLUBAA
(gg's) o8 puaye o} ainjie} yum pabreyo sucsiay

() pue (G)oe'ss
lepun dd4q #ie1s 40 yym, 0 Ag uanib sbBunyeuapun

() pue (9)og'ss
Japun paueil g Alunwwy 1BY) SUOHEPUILLILIOITY

safied |e10} "x0iddy

64



"SUOISIA0ID SI DYOAW 0} AlRLWIC) AfBSSBoaULN Sem

1 y2Iym 103 1NG w6 1S Jo hgquie ay) uiyim Buyrey saousbe woy uonewuoiu 10} sisenbal Jusseidas siexoriq U saanby eyl

S0Lgre'Ls

s1hgx| ‘sakipx)
sihipx|
(Buipuad
feadde)

SJAQX | ‘SIAGXZ
sJAgx | ‘sihQLx]

68-8861

000°'L06° LS

g0 %x¢

88-1861

896°'810°1$ -

Sy

06$x2 ‘Qgoxe

aul 000" L$x1
SIApXL -

18-9861 9g-5861

(anjea ) suonebBisaaul yON JO YNsSad B SB UaNE]
sBupasooid sjasse Jo aunlauoyAjeuad Asunoad

(enjea ¢} sucnefyseaaul
YON J0 Ynsal B sk pasiel SJUSWSSasSSE Uolexe |

(018 weswuosudun siead) pasodus seneuad

)
w



sl [81°S 1epun yoN 0] psonpoid suawnsog

Pl ,81°5 1Opun panssl SadIlON
2s8'e sabed [B10) “xoiddy
68% .sBuleay /s Ui paaiaoss sIqIYX3
114 ,sBuuBBY £}°5 1B POUILEXS SaSSAUUM

- (¥z"s) suodssed jo Alsajap 10} S19pIO
- palesid $a| JO JaguIny

- jue LM DIeos
22's 1I9pun yoN Ag pazias saled |ejo} “xoiddy

- Z22's Japun pajuelf sjurlem yoresg
S palessd sa Jo JaquinN

- €561 1Y "ulwpy
uoexe] (1}Qe's pue 9g61 vy Ll (w)(y)gL's o}
wensind Oy 8yl woy panaoal sebed [eio) 'xosddy

- UONBUIIOMUL JO SINSORSIP 10} £561
1o¥ ‘uupy uonexe| (/)AQg's Japun spew SiapiQ)

- UDIIBUIOI JO BINSO[ISIP
10} 961 YY1l (QHY)9L's Japun apew spIO

- {02°s) siuawnaoop sonpoud oj sjuawsinbay
- (0g's) uonewLOjUI Ysiwiny 0} sjuawalinbay
- {¢61 5} SlwswWnoop 40) apew sisanbay
_ v/N v/N V/N (¥6)°S) uonEwIoII 10} Bpew sisanbay
68-8861 88-1861 28-9861 98-5861

6 'ON 3ON3Y343Y

66



— M~ M~

POUIEIQO SUDNIAUOY
pre| sabieysn
pafiieys suosiad

saolnep Buus)sy Jo asn
Buisioyine pajuelb sjuesem - saanep Bueisy

SUOENHUNLILIOD DS}
10 uondanau Buisuoyine pajuelb sueLepp

palealo safl Jo saquunN

SUELIEM
yons ispun yonN Ag pazies saffed jejo) ‘xoiddy

19v YON 48pun uey) Jayla psiuelb sjueuem yaseag
{re-s) paoajord sassaupupy

(eg"s) anuapiaa
Butpeasit Jo as|e) BuaB yum pafiieys suosiag

(v2ge ‘2e'ss)
SUNOY BIRIS JO LNOY [BI9Pad 0} suoledddy

{1£°S) IsBue o} PaNSSI SIUBLEAA
(0g's) 018 puaye o} ainjiey yum pafileys suoslad

(1) pue {g)og'ss
lapun d4q 8eig Jo yym, Aq uanb sBuenspun

(8) pue (9)oc'ss
lapun pajuesf ag Ayunwiw 1By} SUSHERUSWLIWODSY

viN sefied ejo} ~xoiddy

98-6861

67



"'SABN0U §1°S BIB SHO0U 'S 10} useanba 3RS By ¢

‘'sBuueay /18 aie sBuuesy gZ's 10} 19¥ YON UBIBASNY WINOS 2yl Japun wajeamnba sy} ‘Ajuo aousiee: 918 B §1 SIYI Sy |

{(anjea §) suonebBisaau yON JO Jnsal e se uaye)]
sBuipaanoid syasse jo ainyepoyAeuad Algunosy

(enjea ¢) suonebisaaul
YON JO JNSSl B 58 POSIE) SJUSUSSISSE UONexe |

N VN /N (218 Wwaswuosudwi sieak) pasodul saneuag

68-8861 88-1861 18-9861 98-5861

68



YN
68-8861

/N
88-1861

v/IN
VN
/N
¥iN
VN

18-9861

V/N
V/N
V¥/N
V/N
¥/N

98-5861

62'S I8pun yoN 01 paonpoid siuawnsog
62°S Japun panss| $92IoN

sabed |e1o} ‘xoiddy

sBuleay gz's ul pealgoal suqIyX3
sBuneay gz's e paUILLEXD SOSSAULM
{t2's) suodssed Jo Aiaalap 10} SI8pIQ
pajead sal Jo lagquiny

WRLEM 2RSS
2e's 1apun yoN Aq pazies sabed g0} ‘xouddy

€Z'S 18pun pajuelf sweiem Yoleag
PaleaId S|} (0 JBqUINN

£561 10V tuwpy
uonexey {1)Qg's pue gegl vy Ll (Wip)gl's o)
wensind 1y sy wolj panassl sebed |B1o) "xolddy

LONBWLIOUI JO 9INSO[DSIP 10} £S6 |
10V "UpYy uonexe) {/}QE's Japun apew $iapi0

UONBLUIOMI JO BINSOISIp
10} 9E61 YV LI (QHYIGL'S 13pun epew siapiQ
(0g"s) swewnoop sonpoid o) Sluswalnbay

{(0g's} uonewIoUl YsIuing O} Sjusws.iInbey
{v61°S} Sluswnoop 1o} epew sisanbay
(¥61°S} uorewIO J0} epew sisenbey

g NOLLVYOILSIANI

69



/N

68-8861

cl

¥/N

88-1861

6l
€8

._.__2

V/N
0l

¥/N

18-9861

< 0

PBURIQO SUSIIMAUOY
prey sefireys
pafireyd suosiog

saonap Buiue)si| jo asn
Buisuoyine peajueld sjueiem - saomap Buiusisi

SUOJEDILNWILLIODA|8]
jo uondaoiejul Bursuoyine pejusib sjuBLBAA

poIESID S8{Y JO IequINN

SJUBLIEM
yons lepun yoN Aq pazies sefied [e1o; "xoiddy

10V YON Japun ueyl Jayio pajurlb sluelem yosees
(£°S) paloaloid SasSaUNM

{ge's)
22UDPIAD
Buipesisiw 40 asiey Buinb yum pabileyo suosiag

(vee ‘2e'ss)
SHNOY) 9181S 10 LNOY) |Biapa{ 0} suoijesddy

(1£°S) 1584)e 10} PONSS| SJUBLIEAA
(0€s) 712 pualle 0} ainpe; ynm peblieyo suoslad

{2} pue {g)og'ss
lapun 44 aelg Jo yym, o Aq uanib sBunpeuspun

(8) pue {(9)og'ss
Iepun pejueib aq Alunwul Jey) SUSEpUBLILINSaY

sefied |B10) "xo1ddy

70



SIARPXZ ‘aul
00v$ + SIAGX |
aul

007$ + SIAQX ]
SIAE x|

68-8864

"uonor Unod Bumpuad o) anp pasiieuy usaq Jou sagy siopJo BUIPIOH &

‘uolesado siy wou ynses | Ajeusd g00'009$ snid Xel 000'009¢ 18wl peloadxa s 3| 's1ep Ol
penssi uaaq arey sluswssesse ou - Buipuad eIk SejeIcoSSE PUB YIMOULBKY OlUI Q1Y 84l PUR ddq oyl Ag suonebyseau] |

Ul QO LS +
‘uqoud sylugx |
SYugx|

“ALX) ‘Buly
006.% + 1A4xg
IAEX)

'sIAgX | ‘auy
005" 1§ + SIAEX)
SIAREX ]
SIApX | aul
00v$ +

S1Agx | ‘SIAQ LX ]

88-1861

0£1°1$ Buyelo
sauyxg “uqosd
SYIEXL ‘'ggn)
0Ge$ 142X ‘suy
00628 + JALX}
‘sIAgx| ‘auly
00V$ + Yt
sJAex)

‘SIAZ £x( ‘aul
002$ + s1Agx |
s1AgX|

‘sAZgx| ‘sIA
F2x1s1hQ1xg
SIAE LX) -

18-9861 98-5861

Aenjea ¢) suonebisasul wON O YnNSa. e se uaye)
sBuipesac.d s1@sse Jo ampsioiAleuad Aeunoay

{anjea ¢) suonebizssaul

YON JO UNSal B SE Pes|el SJUSWISSISSE UONEXE |

(218 Juewuosudw) sieak) pasoduwi saileusy

71



¥/N
68-8861

¥/N
88-2861

VN

/N
¥/N
¥/N
¥/N

18-9861

¥/N
V/N
¥/N
ViN
¥/N

98-6861

§2'S Jepun yoN 0} paonpold suswnaog
62'S Japun panss! Sa%NoN

sabed [e10} "x0iddy

sfiueay gz's ul paAaIa2al SUqQIYx
sBulleay gz's 1B pPauILIBXD SOSSAUPAA
{pz's) suodssed jo Alaalap 104 SISPID
pajeals Sajy JO JIsquInN

ueliem 4oueas
2e's lapun yoN Aq pazies sabed 101 xouddy

22'S Japun pajueld sjuelem yoiesg
peleald s JO ISqUNN

£561 10V "uwpy
uonexej {1}Qe's pue 9e61 YvLi (Wi )al's o
wensind Oy 2yl woly paaasal sabfied (e10] ‘xoiddy

UONBLLICJUI JO 2INSO[OSIP 10} £66)
19V “UIUPY UOREXE] (/}JE'S JBPUN apBW SIBPIO

LUORBLLICUI JO 21NS0[0sIp
104 9861 YY1l (QHPI9L's Jepun spew s18pIQ
{pZ's) stuawnoop acnpodd o] sjuswalinbay

{0Z's) uoleuLICHU YSIWNY 0] Suswalinbay
(¢61°S) Sluswnaop Jo} apew sisanbay
{(v61°8) uonew.ojui Jo} spew sisanbay

Q NOILYDILSIANI

72



¥/N

VN

68-8861

VN

VN

88-1861

9e

VN

2879861

¥:N

98-5861

POUBIGO SUOITIALOY
pre| sebieysn
pafireyo suosiag

seoIAap Buiuaysi| jo asn
Buisuoyine pajuelf sjuruem - saoiaap Buusis

SUONEILUNWIWOIR|S)
10 uandaasaiul Buisuoyine paluesf slueLepp

PaIBBId SB[l JO I8QWINN

spelEM
yons 1apun yoN Ad pazies sebed |210] xoiddy

197 YON f8pun uey) Jaylo pajuelb sjueuem yosessg
(rg's) pepaloid sasseuppm

(££°s) aouapine
Buipraisiw io osie) Buinb yum pabiieys suosiay

(vee ‘ggss)
SUNOYD 91BIS 10 UNoY) |BISpa4 0} suoieoyddy

(LE'S) 1SBEB 10} PBNSSI SHIBLEA
{0£°s} 018 pusie o] ainjie) yum pebleyd suosiay

{¢) pue (G)og'ss
lapun 4q4q 21918 40 yym,2 Aq uaaib sBueuspun

(8) pue {g)og'ss
1apun paueib aq Alunwwi jey) SUQIEPUBWIWOSEY

ssfied |ej01 ~xoiddy

73



SIAQLXL

68-8861

s1Ag x|

88-1861

SIAS X2

18-9861

98-5861

{angea ¢} sucneblisaaul YON JO JINsal B SE uaxe)
sBuipaaccid sjasse Jo ainlieuoyAeusd Alelunosad

(anfea §) suonebinsaau
YIIN JO }INS8l B SB pasiel SjUaWISSasSSe uolexe |

{8 wewuosudun sieak} poasodwy saieusd

74





